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Disclaimer
In this Annual Report, we have disclosed forward-looking information to enable investors to comprehend our prospects and take investment decisions. This 

report and other statements -  written and oral – that we periodically make, contain forward-looking statements that set out anticipated results based on the 

management’s plans and assumptions. We have tried wherever possible to identify such statements by using words such as ‘anticipate’, ‘estimate’, ‘expects’, 

‘projects’, ‘intends’, ‘plans’, ‘believes’, and words of similar substance in connection with any discussion of future performance. We cannot guarantee that 

these forward-looking statements will be realized, although we believe we have been prudent in assumptions. The achievements of results are subject to 

risks, uncertainties and even inaccurate assumptions. Should known or unknown risks or uncertainties materialize, or should underlying assumptions prove 

inaccurate, actual results could vary materially from those anticipated, estimated, or projected. Readers should keep this in mind. We undertake no obligation 

to publicly update any forward-looking statements, whether as a result of new information, future events or otherwise.



India has always been an agrarian economy. The irony, however, is that Indian farmers continue 

to suffer. Inspite of abundant natural resources for agricultural growth, our country still fails to 

ensure food security for its own citizens. The recent spate of farmer suicides are further proof of 

the unavailability of the right means to ensure high yield crops. 

And yet, we believe in the future of agriculture. 

Because agriculture is still the biggest untapped potential zone in India. And with the ever 

expanding population, the demand for crops will be at an all-time high. It is the awareness of the 

farmers especially with regards to the agri inputs, that makes the difference. With intricate crop 

protection facilit ies in place, agriculture is bound to be the game changer for the Indian economy. 

Hence we work relentlessly at making our belief a tangible reality.

Because the future of our agriculture is also the future of us. 



Incorporated in 1996, IIL today is among the fastest 

growing agrochemical companies in the country. Post 

the acquisition of brands from Montari Industries 

in 2003, our current product portfolio comprises 

Branded, Technical and Bulk Formulations. We are 

among the few crop protection companies in the 

country to create products covering the entire 

value-chain of crop protection, namely, Insecticides, 

Herbicides, Fungicides and PGRs. 

We have a total of 7 manufacturing facilit ies, with 5 

Formulations and 2 Technical synthesis facilit ies, at 

locations that are within the vicinity of rich agricultural 

belts of the country. In addition, we have 29 depots 

and warehouses to ensure timely delivery of our 

products across the country. 

7 Manufacturing 
facilities in India depots  across India 

 More than 60000 
dealers/ Retailers 

More than 
5000 distributors 

MEET THE HOLISTIC CROP PROTECTORS
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OUR LEADING BRANDS 

SUPER 11

NAVRATNA

Prime Gold

Sargent

Selector

Indan

Logo/Gama

Sharp

Superstar

Metro

Arrow

Phentom

Mycoraja

Lethal

Victor

Thimet

Hijack

Monocil

Hakama

Pulsor

Xplode

Nuvan
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Converted 

into a public 

limited 

Company 

Acquired 

the exclusive 

rights to sell 

the Thimet 

brand in 

India from 

American 

Vanguard 

Corporation,

USA in 

technical 

collaboration

Started 

operations by 

commencing

formulation 

plant in 

Chopanki 

(Rajasthan)

Acquired 21 

leading brands 

of M ontari 

Industries 

Limited 

(Ranbaxy 

Group 

Company)

Commissioned

second

formulation 

plant in 

Samba 

(Jammu &  

Kashmir)

Set up a R& D

Laboratory 

in Chopanki 

Plant at 

Chopanki  

accredited 

with ISO

9001:2008

20062002 20042003 20051996 2001

Incorporated 

Insecticides

(India) as a 

Private Limited 

Company 

OUR JOURNEY
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The Company 

got listed on 

NSE and BSE

with an Initial 

Public Offering 

The Technical 

plant at 

Chopanki 

commenced

operations

Expansion of 

capacity at the 

Formulations 

plant was 

completed in 

Samba

Received the 

OHSAS 18001 

Acquired 

M onocil brand 

from NOCIL

Limited 

Set up two new 

formulation 

plants at Dahej

and Udhampur

Launched Nuvan 

in technical 

collaboration

with AM VAC

Launched

Hakama and 

Pulsor in tie-up 

with Nissan

Entered into a 

Joint Venture 

with OAT Agrio, 

Japan, for 

research and 

invention of new 

agro chemicals 

Commencement

of operations 

at the Technical 

plant at Dahej

Started 

producing 

Diafenthiuron

Commencement

of Packaging &  

Distribution of 

Hakama

Established the 

R& D Centre in 

Joint Venture 

with OAT

Agrio, Japan, 

at Chopanki, 

Rajasthan

Commencement

of New

Formulation 

unit at E439-

440, Chopanki 

(Rajasthan)

2007 2011 20142008 2012 2015
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FINANCIAL TRIUMPHS
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REVENUE BY PRODUCTS*

REVENUE BY CUSTOM ER SEGM ENT
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MESSAGE FROM THE CHAIRMAN

Today, farmers in our country are faced with 

multiple challenges – from unpredictable weather 

conditions, lower yield to increasing food demand. 

For addressing these challenges, crop protection 

becomes an integral part of the solution.

08



I also take this opportunity to thank 
our suppliers, dealers, distributors and 

all stakeholders for their continued 
support and belief in our company. 
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WHAT MAKES US BELIEVE IN
THE FUTURE OF AGRICULTURE?

OUR HOLISTIC APPROACH

Integration
Backed by our agronomic expertise and deep 

understanding of crop productivity, we have built 

an integrated business model to offer products that 

help farmers make their crops bountiful. 

[Read more on page12]

Partnerships
Over the years we have partnered with leading 

agrochemical companies of the world to launch 

new products and adapt to new technologies. This 

has helped us generate sustainable revenues for 

stakeholder wealth creation.

[Read more on page 16]

Innovation
We have introduced products that have been widely 

accepted by the farmer fraternity. With a dedicated 

R&D team on board, we intend to provide the latest 

technology and products to farmers. 

[Read more on page 14]
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All our manufacturing facilities are equipped with technologies and 

infrastructure that help reduce the impact on environment. 

Our journey towards growth has been supported by our principle of 

doing things the right way. We focus strongly on transparency, ethics and 

governance (within and outside the organisation) to drive the organisation 

ahead.

OUR PRIM E GROWTH CATALYSTS

At IIL, we cater to the industry with products like insecticides, herbicides, 

fungicides and PGRs. These products are available in more than 99 

formulations, 19 technicals and 350 SKUs.

Product 
portfolio

Our recently set up R&D centre in JV with OAT Agrio, Japan, strengthens our 

R&D capabilities. It will help us produce new molecules backed by innovation 

and also assist us in being reckoned amongst the leaders in crop protection 

sector. Research &  
Development 

Eco-friendly

Governance 

The evolving nature of the sector requires us to strengthen our intellectual 

capabilities. At IIL, we continuously strengthen our people force, across 

verticals, enabling us to reach our goals. 

People 

We have established manufacturing facilities with expanded capacities in 

India, backed by processes that are technology empowered. This allows us 

to manufacture with consistent quality and safety across our product line. 

M anufacturing 

11INSECTICIDES (INDIA) LIM ITED | Annual Report 2014-15



At Insecticides (India), our differentiating factor is our integrated 

to tackle multiple crop protection problems, produce high yield 

crops and live a better life with sustained earnings. 

INTEGRATION

12



Over the years, we have gained 

agronomic expertise with a deep 

knowledge of the challenges faced 

by crop growers on various fronts. 

We leveraged our knowledge and 

experience, created an integrated 

business environment and answered the 

unprecedented challenges that surround  

food security in our country today. 

We have always believed in bringing 

new and better solutions to our farmers. 

chain of distribution, working tirelessly 

to generate more revenues and cover 

maximum geographies in the country. 

has helped us achieve a higher market 

share in the agrochemical sector. In 

addition, we have more than 5000 

distributors and over 60000 dealers, all 

across India, to take our products closer 

to crores of farmers.  

team ensures we continue strengthening 

installed with state-of-  art technologies to 

produce products of high quality, across 

the length and breadth of our portfolio. 

Ensuring the best of product quality, we 

help the farmers enhance their yields, 

thereby building an enduring relationship, 

year after year. We have expanded 

our capacities multi- fold and set up 1 

technical synthesis and 3 formulation 

Our diverse product basket completes 

our integrated value-chain. Factors like 

unpredictable monsoon and urban 

sprawl tend to add to the worries 

of crop protection, which is already 

accentuated by  insects and diseases. At 

Insecticides (India) our products cover 

multiple problem areas faced by a crop 

grower, for a wide variety of crops. From 

branded formulations to technical to bulk 

formulations; our products under each 

segment is trusted and endorsed by lacs 

of farmers across the country. The result: 

more than 350+  registrations till March 

2015, with  Navratna (9 Premier brands) 

and Super 11 brands being the most 

value-generating products.  

13INSECTICIDES (INDIA) LIM ITED | Annual Report 2014-15



At Insecticides (India), we are always crop and farmer-focused. 

This deeply embedded philosophy helps us improve products in line 

with evolving farmer needs. We remain committed to produce new 

products that complement our existing portfolio. This ‘innovation-

driven’ approach is the true force behind Insecticides (India)’s growth. 

INNOVATION

14



Research & Development (R&D) forms 

an integral cornerstone of our growth 

strategy. With increasing shortage of 

land and increasing demand for food, we 

realise the importance of new product 

development.

for reverse engineering of off-patented 

products. The centre at Chopanki, 

Rajasthan is recognised by DSIR. We 

successfully developed 50 new processes, 

received one process patent and 7 

patent applications are pending for 

One of the breakthrough innovations by 

the R&D team was the new process for 

Thiamethoxam as an environmentally 

friendly product, by eliminating Methanol 

from its formulation. This helped decrease 

time and cost substantially. 

We also established our new R&D 

facility at Chopanki, Rajasthan with our 

recent Joint Venture partner OAT Agrio, 

Japan. The unit, backed by 32 scientists 

and experts has been exponential for 

the development and invention of new 

agriculture molecules for domestic and 

international markets, along with the 

managing of intellectual property. With 

this joint venture, we expect to launch 

new patented products (with exclusive 

distribution rights) in India and 14 other 

countries including the Middle East and 

East African countries. 

Knowing that agrochemicals worth 

US$6.3 billion* are expected to be 

opportunity to introduce new products 

with patent molecules lies ahead. 

We are optimistic about developing, 

breakthrough innovative products for 

contribute to the top line in the coming 

years. 
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At Insecticides (India), we have moved swiftly in terms of new and 

innovative products through licensing, tie ups and strategic joint 

ventures. We have been working with several global agrochemical 

companies to leverage their expertise in order to introduce products 

for the Indian farmers.

PARTNERSHIPS

16



In early 2006, we partnered with AMVAC, 

USA to acquire the manufacturing, 

marketing and distribution rights of 

Thimet brand (Insecticide) for India 

and Nepal. Today, Thimet is the largest 

revenue grosser for the Company. 

Similarly, we acquired manufacturing, 

marketing and distribution rights for 

Nuvan brand (Insecticide) from AMVAC, 

USA.

In addition, we also acquired the 

marketing rights of Nissan Chemical’s 

(from Japan) leading products, Pulsor 

and Hakama (Fungicide and Herbicide 

respectively) in 2012. Both these products 

are today leading products in their 

respective segments, serving farmers with 

qualitative crop protection solutions. 

Our recent joint venture with OAT 

Agrio, Japan further strengthens our 

commitment towards new product 

development. OAT Agrio, being one of 

the research companies in Japan, brings 

to table their expertise for new molecule 

development, which would in turn help 

us  come up with novel products in the 

minimum possible time.

We shall continue to develop strong 

brands under each product category, 

backed by our effective marketing and 

branding strategies. Our extensive 

range of product (branded formulations, 

technical and bulk formulations) continues 

to earn the trust of the farmer fraternity, 

thereby making farming a viable and 

attractive occupation for the rural 

communities.
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We commenced operations at our formulation plant in

located at Chopanki (Rajasthan), Udhampur and Samba

(Jammu & Kashmir), Dahej (Gujarat) and two technical

synthesis plants located at Chopanki (Rajasthan) and Dahej

(Gujarat). Our technical manufacturing capacity accounted

2014. All our manufacturing facilities are equipped with

fully automatic lines and automatic packaging machinery

which facilitate in manufacturing quality products.

OUR CAPACITY METER
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CHOPANKI,
RAJASTHAN 

Unit- I

Formulations
FY02 8000 3314 18000 11143

Unit- II

Technicals
FY08 3958 1657 3800 1199

Unit- III 

Formulations
FY15 7094 4077 20000 2120

SAMBA, 
JAMMU & 
KASHMIR

Formulations FY05 9358 6210 13430 6157

UDHAMPUR,
JAMMU & 

KASHMIR

Formulations FY12 6070 5434 5600 2921

DAHEJ, 
GUJARAT

Unit- I

Formulations
FY12

167314 11830

53000 14924

Unit- II 

Technicals
FY13 10000 6564

Location Unit Started in 
Plot

Area (in 
sq.mtrs)

Built up 
area (in
sq.mtrs)

Installed
capacity 
(M TPA)

Capacity 
Utilisation

(M TPA)
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IN SPOTLIGHT
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Manufacturing locations

R&D Center

GEOGRAPHIC PRESENCE
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Project Vidhya

Started the social welfare program in districts of 

Punjab, Rajasthan and Odhisa

Have adopted several school in villages supporting 

them

Have successfully provided books and study material to 

children

Have the objective to further adopting villages and 

empowering people with dignity, respect and a better 

livelihood

Kisan Jagrukta Abhiyan

Understanding the vitality of crop protection, the 

need for information for farmers for their upliftment, ÌIL 

initiated a farmer awareness initiative “KISAN JAGRUKTA 

ABHIYAN”

We have taken up the project to promote the 

cultivation of ‘Green Gram’, helping farmers to enhance 

their soil fertility and help generate extra income

Several thousands of farmers attended the camp, 

agrochemicals

Your company has set up IIL Foundation, with an aim to make the CSR wing of the company dedicated 

to their goals and make a difference.  These form part of the overall business ethics of the Company. 

in every life that it touches. Two main projects have been taken up under IIL foundation: farmer 

awareness program by the name of Kisan Jagrukta Abhiyan and child education under Project Vidhya.

SUSTAINABILITY AND CARE
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Mr. Hari Chand Aggarwal, Chairman

Mr. Rajesh Aggarwal, Managing Director

Mrs. Nikunj Aggarwal, Whole-time Director

Mr. Vrijesh Kumar Gupta, Director

Mr. Navneet Goel, Director

Mr. Gopal Chandra Agarwal, Director

Mr. Navin Shah, Director

Mr. Anil Kumar Singh, Director
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M/s Mohit Parekh & Co.

Chartered Accountants, Delhi

Cost Auditors
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Indian economy
A political mandate at the central government elections last year renewed sense of optimism for economic growth despite benign external 

environment. Decisive shift in reforms and policies, controlled inlation, reduced current account deicit and stabilising rupee currency fuelled 

the country back to higher GDP growth. According to the data release by the Central Statistics Ofice (CSO), the economic grew by 7.3% in 

2014-15 against 6.9% in 2013-14 as per the new series of national accounts with base year of 2011-12. The Gross Value Added (GVA), a new 

concept introduced by CSO to measure the economic activity, rose by 7.2% in 2014-15 compared 6.6 % in the previous iscal. 

Management
Discussion and Analysis

Quarterly GDP growth

(Source: Reserve Bank of India)

*Quarterly data for 2013-14 and 2014-15 is from the new GDP service measured by CSO with here year received on 2011-12
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Sector performance

The improvement in GDP was backed by surge in both services 

as well as manufacturing sector. The fourth quarter (January-March) 

of last iscal saw the economy grow at 7.5%, better than 6.6% 

recorded for the previous three months, October-December. The 

manufacturing sector GVA rose by 7.1% during the year as against 

5.3% in 2013-14. Similarly, the output of electricity, gas, water supply 

and other utility services rose by 7.9% as against 4.8% a year ago. 

The construction activity too registered an increase of 4.8%, up from 

2.5% a year ago. Financial, real estate and professional services also 

showed an improvement by registering a growth of 11.5% as against 

7.9% in previous iscal. However, the farm and allied sectors grew by a 

meagre 0.2% compared to 3.7% a year ago. The output of mining and 

quarrying sector too slipped to 2.4% from 5.4% a year ago. (Source: 

Central Statistics Ofice, Government of India)

Industry overview - Agriculture
Agriculture has been an integral way of life and continues to be the 

single most important livelihood of more than half the population of 

the country. Agricultural policy focus in India across decades has been 

on self-sufi ciency and self-reliance in food grains production. Since 

independence, agriculture sector has grown manifold, with food grain 

production rising from 52 million tonnes in 1951-52 to 265 million 

tonnes in 2013-14. At 157.35 million hectares, India holds the second 

largest agricultural land in the world. India is blessed with 20 different 

agri-climatic regions and all major 15 major climates in the world. 

The country also possesses 46 of the 60 soil types in the world. 

Agriculture sector saw a CAGR of 2.8% from FY07-14. Agriculture 

and allied sectors saw a growth of 3.6% in FY14. (Source: Ministry of 

Agriculture)

Did you know?

their biggest importer 3.5 MT

government has aimed to increase the exports from 1.3 MT in 

2013 to an average of 2 MT in 2014 and 2015

2016-17, on the back of creative marketing strategies, innovative 

packaging, strength in quality and a strong distribution network

the previous year’s (2012-13) 257 MT, according to data provided 

by Department of Economics and Statistics (DES)

production in the country during the season was 390 lakh bales in 

2014-15, against 370 lakh bales in 2013-14

of India (SOPA), the All India estimated production for Kharif 2014 

is 104.366 Lacs MT as compared to 94.768 Lacs MT during Kharif 

2013

Short-term and medium-term plan

As terms of trade deteriorate and as rural incomes come under 

pressure, for the short-term beneit, one must enhance targeted 

support for the vulnerabilities in agriculture sector. Among the many, 

two primary area of concerns being small farmers and agricultural 

labourers, needing immediate attention. The MGNREGA program 

has the virtue of being reasonably well-targeted. The challenge here 

is to build on this feature and use the program to build assets such 

as rural roads, micro-irrigation and water management, while also 

shoring up rural incomes. In the medium-term, the time is ripe for a 

more broad-based response to the challenges in agriculture and to 

ensure that agriculture grows at about 4 percent on a sustained basis.

Factors in�uencing agriculture

Apart from supporting the broader Indian economy, sustained 

growth in the agriculture sector is imperative to meet the suppliers 

and consumers needs. Some of the key factors that play a signiicant 

role in development of the sector are:
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Irrigation: India’s irrigation potential has steadily increased and in 

FY13 it stood at 139.5 mn hectares compared to 90 mn hectares 

in 1995. Pradhan Mantri Krishi Sinchai Yojana is a key government 

irrigation initiative aimed at ensuring access to water to every farm 

and improving water use eficiency. Total allocation for FY16 for this 

Mechanisation: Mechanization is essential to improve productivity 

and eficiency of the sector. Growing sales of tractors and tillers in 

India relects the increasing level of mechanization in farming; over 

FY07-14, tractor sales rose at a CAGR of 8.7 % and tillers at CAGR 

of 19.3 % over FY07-13.

Use of quality seeds:

prevalent in cash crops than food crops. In FY13, production of 

certiied seeds increased to 3.0 mn tonnes from 1.27 mn tonnes 

in FY07. The government encourages private seed companies by 

providing a subsidy of 25 per cent of the capital cost subject to a 

Use of agrochemicals: Aggressive expansion of industrial and 

residential area has reduced the cultivatable area for crop 

production. This has pushed the thrust on increased usage of 

agrochemicals, to enhance the crop productivity and yield per acre. 

With India still lagging in terms of per hectare consumption of agro 

chemicals, the use of agrochemicals plays a key role in growth of 

the sector.

Institutional Credit: Institutional credit to the agriculture sector 

increased at a CAGR of 17.4 per cent during FY07–13. Farmers are 

allowed to avail crop loans at an interest of 7 per cent. Domestic 

banks (both private and public) are stipulated to provide almost 

are issuing Kisan Credit Card (KCC) to farmers to provide timely 

and adequate credit support. Recent budget’s target to achieve 

H8.5 lakh crore for the farm credit through bank network will 

provide much needed credit to the farming community.

Minimum Support Price (MSP): Form of market intervention 

by Indian government of setting loor price for crops to protect 

farmers. The MSP is announced well ahead of the sowing season 

so that the farmers can take informed decisions on cropping. 

Government needs to ensure MSP beneits to broader farmer 

base and should be used as a price-shock protection tool rather 

than structural tool.

Foreign Direct Investment: Agricultural services and machinery 

sectors have cumulatively attracted foreign direct investment (FDI) 

April 2000-December 2014, according to the Department of 

Industrial Policy and Promotion (DIPP).

Weather: The south-west monsoon season (June-October) is 

the most important weather pattern for the Indian economy and 

agriculture. A normal monsoon season is essential for the crops, 

farmers and to ensure prices are maintained and inlation risk is 

contained. Kharif crops in India require monsoon rains for their 

Sesame are among the major crops that rely on Monsoon rains. 

Dairy farms in India also depend on Southwest Monsoon to keep 

cows healthy.

Agrochemical sector – an overview
The adversities pertaining to agriculture sector, driven by low crop 

productivity and lesser realisations, substantially cause increased usage 

in agrochemicals. The low per capita consumption of agrochemicals 

further widens the scope and need to use agrochemicals in the sector. 

With increasing population, demand for food grains is increasing at 

a faster pace as compared to its production. Moreover, every year, 

signiicant amount of crop yield is lost due to non-usage of crop 

protection products.

Primarily, the crop protection sector is divided into ive core 

categories:

Indian agrochemical industry

India is the fourth largest producer of crop protection chemicals 

industry is a signiicant industry for the Indian economy and accounts 

for ~3% of the total chemicals market. For FY14, Indian Crop market 

in the recent years. Greater export opportunities and introduction 

of newer molecules have led to high growth rates. Currently, the 

exports of crop protection chemicals are estimated at ~50% of the 

market. (Source: FICCI Report)

India’s yield per hectare is still half of Thailand, Malaysia, Vietnam, 

and China. A Livemint study estimates that raising yields to levels of 

other Asian nations could help bring 125 million poor and vulnerable 

Indians to a minimum acceptable standard of living. Technology use is 

the key to this goal.

McKinsey Global Institute estimates that applications of a range of 

digital and agronomic technologies could –

agriculture in 2025

33%
Estimated increase in food grain production through use of 

crop protection products. (Source: FICCI Report)
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(b) would help up to 90 million farmers raise their incomes

(c) 200-250 million Indians could beneit from better nutrition from 

more plentiful harvests

(d) one million Indians in rural communities could ind decent 

productive work in the agricultural sector as computer-equipped 

farm-extension workers.

High spent on food and large employed population makes agriculture 

a signiicant part of economy. Agriculture even though accounts for 

only ~13.7% of GDP it employs 47% of the workforce. However 

Indian agriculture is faced with challenges like limited farmland 

availability and low crop yields. India’s agrochemicals consumption is 

one of the lowest in the world with per hectare consumption of just 

Key market trends

The Indian agrochemicals market is characterized by low capacity 

utilization. The industry suffers from high inventory (owing to 

credit periods to farmers, thus making operations ‘working capital’ 

intensive. India due to its inherent strength of low-cost manufacturing 

and qualiied low-cost manpower is a net exporter of agrochemicals 

Focus on developing environmentally safe agrochemicals by the 

industry as well as the Government. The Department of Chemicals has 

initiated a nationwide programme for “Development and production 

of neem products as Environment Friendly Pesticides” with inancial 

Opportunities and challenges

Key Opportunities

Low consumption:  

lowest in consumption per hectare of agrochemicals in the world. 

The developed nations consume agrochemicals far more, atleast 

20-30 times more as compared to India. This presents a signiicant 

opportunity for the agrochemicals sector in India to grow in the 

coming times.

Export opportunity: In the past few years, India has witnessed 

a strong export growth in agrochemicals. Globally, India is the 

thirteenth largest exporter of agrochemicals. The key growth 

drivers are India’s capability in low cost manufacturing, availability 

of technically trained manpower, seasonal domestic demand, 

overcapacity and better price realisation. 

Indian Agrochemicals Exports         

(In USD Bn)

FY09 FY10 FY11 FY12 FY13

1.05 1.15 1.38 1.66 2.00

(Source: Trademap statistics)

Growth in generic products: During the period of 2014 - 

patent providing opportunities for the Indian generic product 

manufacturer’s organic growth opportunities and expand their 

market presence.

Agrochemicals going-off patent

(In USD Bn)

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

1.3 0.9 1.2 1.6 0.4 0.7 0.2

costs and growth in GM crops has led to growth in the use of 

herbicides. The herbicide consumption in India currently stands at 

hand the fungicide industry in India has grown due to the growth 

in Indian horticulture industry, which has grown at a CAGR of 7.5% 

over the last ive years.

Key Challenges

Regulatory norms:

regulatory norms play a crucial role in development of a new 

product. There are increasing cost of developing new products and 

simultaneously delay in introduction of new products in markets. 

The gestation period involved, ranging anywhere between 4-5 

years is a hurdle for the growth of the sector.

Lack of R&D activities:

large section of players from investing into the new product 

product development acts as a hindrance for many players.

Lack of awareness: Knowing the complexities involved in usage 

of agrochemicals, it is important to educate the farmers about the 

appropriate kinds of pesticide, its dosage and quantity. Owing to 

diverse landscape, geographic boundaries and dialect barriers, the 

agrochemical players are unable to communicate the advantages 

of the using the chemicals.

Lack of integrated distribution network: The end-users of 

0.6
India is amongst the lowest in consumption per hectare of 

agrochemicals in the world.
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agrochemicals being predominantly farmers, presses the need for 

having a large and integrated distribution network. Due to diverse 

landscape of the country, the industry players face problems of 

supply chain ineficiencies and inadequate infrastructure. This 

results in huge post harvest losses, thereby having a direct impact 

on the livelihood of the farmers.

Unorganised sector:

population of the country, the agrochemical sector is bound to only 

enhance the productivity of crops and enrich the livelihood of the 

farmers. However, with more than 40% of the sector dominated 

by unorganised, adulterated and sub-standard products, further 

damage the reputation and relevance of using agrochemicals.

Outlook

billion in FY14 and is expected to grow at a CAGR of 12% to reach 

of Indian crop protection industry and are expected to grow at a 

share in Indian crop protection industry. Domestic market on the 

other hand would grow at 8% CAGR, as it is predominantly monsoon 

Company overview
Insecticides India Limited (IIL) is today amongst the leading 

agrochemicals companies in India. With a strong product portfolio 

and a pan India presence, we are among the few companies in 

the country to have a complete integrated portfolio. Our product 

basket consists of formulations, technicals and household products. 

With an increasing market share, our brands are fast emerging as 

most trusted crop protection tools in the Indian agriculture sector. 

We have entered into strategic partnerships and joint ventures with 

global agrochemicals players for licensing, marketing and distributor 

agreements. Over the years, we have also established a strong 

distribution network, spread across the country with more than 5000 

distributors.

Business highlights

While the macro economic factors remained subdued and volatile, 

we performed quite well during the year under review. Some of the 

highlights during the year under review were:

R&D Centre:

venture with OAT Agrio, Japan. With more than 32 scientists. We 

unit.

Patents: This unit has been working in the direction of new process 

development, and is making applications for process patents.

Market: Penetrated further into new districts and rural towns of 

our existing markets, as well forayed into new states in the country

Plants: Operated the irst full year of operations for the Technical 

plant at Dahej, operating at 66% capacity utilisation. We also 

commenced Operations of New Formulation plant at E439-440, 

RIICO Industrial Area, Chopanki.

New products: Launched bio product Myocraja, a bio fertiliser, 

which has got overwhelming response. Introduced three technical 

products Diafenthiuron, Imazethapyr and Myclobutanil.

Financial analysis
Analysis of the Proit and Loss account

Financial snapshot (H in Lacs)

2014-15 2013-14 % growth 

(annualised)

Total income 103176.99 92298.92 12%

Net sales 96419.15 86408.16 12%

11149.36 8221.87 36%

PAT 5484.38 3994.26 37 %

Income analysis

Total income

The total income of the Company (income from operating and non-operating income) increased 12% from H92298.92 Lacs in 2013-14 to 

H103176.99 Lacs in 2014-15.

Income from operating activities

The operating income of the Company comprising net sales increased 12% from H86408.16 Lacs in 2013-14 to H96419.15 Lacs in 2014-15, 

owing to an increase in sales. 
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Margin (In percentage)

2014-15 2013-14

11.56 9.51

Net proit margin 5.69 4.62

margins was primarily because of an enhanced operational eficiency compared with last year.

Cost analysis

The total expenditure of the Company increased 10.36% from H81588.39 Lacs in 2013-14 to H90045.83 Lacs in 2014-15

Cost components (H in Lacs)

2014-15 % of total cost 2013-14 % of total cost

Operating expenses 85313.32 94.75 78231.67 95.88

Financial expenses 3315.69 3.68 2691.17 3.30

Non-cash expenses 1416.82 1.57 665.55 0.82

Total 90045.83 100.00 81588.39 100.00

Operating expenses

Total operating expenses increased 9.05% from H78231.67 Lacs in 2013-14 to H85313.32 Lacs in 2014-15. The primary items in the operating 

expenses comprised:

Raw material costs: The cost of raw materials consumed increased 23.5% from H55028.87 Lacs in 2013-14 to H67963.68 Lacs in 2014-15, owing 

to an increase in the quantity of production along with a rise in the price of the raw materials. The raw material consumption, as a percentage 

of gross sales, increased from 59.65% in 2013-14 to 65.90% in 2014-15.

Manufacturing expenses: The Company’s manufacturing expenses increased 26.07% from H3922.17 Lacs in 2013-14 to H4944.77 Lacs in 

2014-15. The primary reasons for growth in the manufacturing costs are:

- Increase in power and fuel costs by 15.03% from H1225.58 Lacs in 2013-14 to H1409.74 Lacs in 2014-15, owing to increased production 

and an increase in power and fuel charges.

- Increase in employee costs by 15.45% from H1038.02 Lacs in 2013-14 to H1198.43 Lacs in 2014-15.

Financial expenses

Total inancial expenses comprising interest and inancial expenses increased 23.21% from H2691.17 Lacs in 2013-14 to H3315.69 Lacs in 

2014-15. The increase was primarily on account of increase in external debt along with a rise in average interest rates. The interest cover of the 

Company decreased marginally from 5.18 times in 2013-14 to 4.64 times in 2014-15.

Analysis of the Balance Sheet

Sources of funds

Analysis of capital employed                                                        (H in Lacs)       

Segment 2014-15 2013-14

Amount % of total capital 

employed

Amount % of total capital 

employed

Share capital 1268.30 2.11 1268.30 2.52

Reserves and surplus 27872.85 46.33 23387.29 46.54

Net worth 29141.15 48.44 24655.59 49.07

Loan funds 29460.77 48.97 24263.60 48.29

Deferred tax liability   1556.92   2.59   1326.66  2.64

Capital employed 60158.84 100.00 50245.85 100.00
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Capital employed

The total capital employed by the Company increased 19.73% from 

H50245.85 Lacs as on March 31, 2014 to H60158.84 Lacs as on 

March 31, 2015, following an increase in reserves and surplus. 

Net worth

The Company’s networth as a proportion of total capital employed 

stood at 48.44% as on March 31, 2015. 

Share capital: The Company’s equity share capital remained unchanged 

at H1268.30 Lacs.

Reserve and surplus: Reserves and surplus increased 19.18% from 

H23387.29 Lacs as on March 31, 2014 to H27872.85 Lacs as on 

March 31, 2015 – through a ploughback of operational proit

Risk management
Risks and its effect are possible events or possibilities that have could 

have an impact on the Company’s performance or results. IIL analyses 

business risks followed by a detailed mitigating approach.

The Company may not be able to capitalize on growing 

business opportunities

Mitigation: The Company enjoys enduring relationships with farmers 

across the country’s major crop growing areas. With problems like less 

rainfall and labour issues, agriculture productivity is a major issue. The 

Company is present with a comprehensive product range supported 

by multiple manufacturing facilities. The Company’s manufacturing 

facilities are proximate to agriculture growing regions of the country, 

providing quick access from factory to farm.

Volatile raw material costs could affect the bottomline

Mitigation: The Company enters into short and long term contracts 

to reduce the impact of price volatility. Its proximity to raw material 

(being close to ports) and multi-vendor support has helped reduce 

costs. 

Quality aberrations could affect revenues

Mitigation: The Company is consistently committed to continuous 

quality checks. Its plants are certiied across safety and environment 

certiications. It received quality approvals from international bodies.

Increasing competition may affect prospects

Mitigation: The Company’s revenue grew by more than 12% in 2014-

15, while the industry grew by 0.2 per cent. The Company increased 

its market share of its Navtranta brands in addition to its other 

to 11.56% in 2014-15.

Obsolete technology could affect product quality

Mitigation: The Company invested in specialized imported equipment 

for its core products. In addition, the Company has invested in more 

than H200 crore in the last ive years for capacity expansion, with state-

of-the-art technologies across its multiple manufacturing facilities. It 

machineries support the team for developing future products.

Inadequate liquidity could affect growth plans

Mitigation: The Company is adequately supported by cash reserves 

The Company’s average debt cost is less, showcasing its inancial 

sustainability.

Internal Control System

The Company follows an adequate and systematic internal control 

system, which ensures a smooth operation throughout. The assets 

are well protected with all security arrangements. All transactions 

pass through speciied hierarchy and a strict discipline is maintained 

in the recording of the same. The internal audit committee has been 

formulated, which takes care of audit and compliances being met. 

Accountants are engaged by the Company to ensure compliance of 

all statutory regulations. The Enterprise Risk Management framework 

and Managing Director and CFO (Chief Financial Oficer) certiication 

as required under Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement with Stock 

Exchanges for controls testing pertaining to inancial reporting, 

resulted in continuing improvement in internal control.

Human Resources

The Company considers its employees as its main assets. The 

employees are evaluated and reviewed on Key Result Areas (KRAs) 

to assess the skills and plan for their future growth under MDP. 

Training needs are identiied to meet individual requirements through 

in-house training, on-the-job training

and outdoor training as a continuous process. Trainings are classiied 

on the basis of requirements like individual development on soft 

program. Current efforts also include building skills, attracting and 

retaining talent and nurturing and developing leadership potential. 

The Company currently has [979] member team across its facilities 

and ofices.

Research and Development
Insecticides (India) Ltd. has been directing its focus on Research 

of the few companies engaged into formulations and technicals, it 

new products which would help the Company achieve new heights 

if success and partner the growth of the agriculture sector. The 

professional scientist who carry out a wide range of chemical 
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and Infrared Spectrophotometer etc.

Environment, Safety and Health Parameters
The Company has been following a stringent policy for implementing 

an Environmental management System (EMS) for meeting the 

purpose of organization’s policy and objectives regarding environment. 

It aims at use of processes, practices, techniques, materials, products, 

services or energy to avoid, reduce or control the creation, emission 

or discharge of any type of pollutant or waste, in order to reduce 

adopted by the Company, the elements of the OHSAS 18001:1999 

Amendment 1:2002 standard and measures stipulated for ensuring 

satisfaction of interested parties (i.e. customers, suppliers, employees 

and public)

Corporate Social Responsibility
With the set-up og IIL foundation, we have strengthened in achieving 

inclusive growth for society at large. In order to achieve overall 

sustainability, the Company conducts several responsible activities. 

During the year under review, the Company started social welfare 

program by the name of ‘Project Vidhya’ in several districts of Punjab 

and Rajasthan. The activity involves distribution of books and study 

material to children empowering them towards leading a better life. 

Similar campaign was launched by the name of ‘Kisan Jagruta Abhiyan’, 

where the farmers of the several districts in the states of Haryana, 

Andhra Pradesh, Rajasthan and Punjab were educated and trained 

for better agricultural practices. With more than 5000 such meetings 

held among thousands of farmers, the campaign was acknowledged 

by them. 
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 (H in Lacs)

Particulars Standalone

Current Year ending

March 31, 2015

Previous Year ending 

March 31, 2014

Revenue from Operations (Net) and other income 96462.68 86453.54

Depreciation 1416.82 665.55

Expenditure 88629.01 80922.83

6416.85 4865.15

Provision for Tax 932.47 870.88

Proit After Tax (PAT) 5484.39 3994.27

18114.26 15051.66

Proit available for Appropriations 23598.64 19045.92

Appropriations:

Proposed inal equity dividend 475.61 380.49

Tax on proposed equity dividend 96.82 64.66

Transfer to general reserve 641.69 486.52

Adjustment of pre-operative exp. 60.63 -

Your Directors are delighted in presenting the 18th Annual Report and the Audited Accounts for the inancial year ended March 31, 2015.

1. Financial Results

2. Review of Performance
During the year under review, the Net Turnover of the Company 

rose to H96419.15 Lacs as against H86408.16 Lacs reported last 

year, registering a growth of 12%.  The Company has earned Net 

Proit H5484.39 Lacs, as against the net proit of H3994.27 Lacs 

reported last year, registering a growth of 37%. The improvement in 

performance of your Company could mainly be attributed to better 

capacity utilization, ongoing emphasis on productivity and eficiency, 

improvement in all areas of operation.

3. Extract of Annual Return
In accordance with Section 134 (3) (a) of the Companies Act, 2013, 

an extract of Annual Return of the Company is annexed herewith as 

Annexure VII to this Report.

4. Dividend
Your Directors are pleased to recommend for your consideration 

and approval payment of dividend @ 25% amounting to H2.50 per 

equity share of H

of dividend outgo for the inancial year H572.43 Lacs (including 

Corporate Dividend Tax amounting to H96.82 Lacs).

The total amount of H 621.87 Lacs (including Corporate Dividend Tax) 

amounting to H105.18 Lacs shall be distributed to the shareholders 

because the paid up share capital of the Company has increased after 

The dividend will be paid to members whose names appear in the 

Register of Members as on September 14, 2015. 

Directors’ 
Report
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5. Fixed Deposits
During the inancial year, the Company has not accepted any ixed 

deposits from the public under Section 73 and 74 of the Companies 

Act, 2013 along with the rules made thereunder during the year 

under review. 

6. Transfer to Reserve
During the year, amount of H641.69 Lacs has transferred to General 

Reserve. 

7. Pollution Control
The Company has taken various initiatives to keep the environment 

free from pollution. It has already installed various devices in the 

factories to control the pollution.

8. Subsidiary Company, Associate Company 
and Joint Venture Company 
There is no  subsidiary company (ies) of the Company during the 

year under review.

its joint venture company within the meaning of Section 2(6) of the 

Companies Act, 2013, as on March 31, 2015. Also, the Company has 

“Isec Organics Limited” as its associate company.

A report on the performance and inancial position of each of 

the subsidiaries, associates and joint venture companies as per the 

Companies Act, 2013 is provided as Annexure III and hence not 

repeated here for the sake of brevity. The Policy for determining 

material subsidiaries as approved may be accessed on the Company’s 

RELATED%20PARTY%20TRANSACTION%20FINAL.pdf

9. Directors  

Companies Act, 2013 and in pursuant of Clause 49 of the Listing 

Agreement with Stock Exchanges, the Company had appointed, Mr. 

Virjesh Kumar Gupta, Mr. Navneet Goel, Mr. Gopal Chandra Agarwal, 

Mr. Navin Shah and Mr. Anil Kumar Singh as Independent Directors. 

In accordance with the provisions of Section 149 of the Companies 

Act, 2013, these Directors were appointed as Independent Directors 

to hold ofice as per their tenure of appointment decided in the last 

Annual General Meeting of the Company.

The Company has received declarations from all Independent 

Directors of the Company conirming that they meet with the 

criteria of independence as prescribed both under sub-section (6) of 

Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013 and under revised Clause 

49 of the Listing Agreement with Stock Exchanges. 

Further, Mrs. Nikunj Aggarwal, retires at the ensuing Annual General 

Meeting and being eligible offers herself for re-appointment. We seek 

your support in conirming her re-appointment as Director.

10. Number of Board Meetings  

the details of which are given in the Corporate Governance Report 

that forms the part of Annual Report. The intervening gap between 

any two meetings was within the period prescribed by the Companies 

Act, 2013 and Listing Agreement entered with Stock Exchanges.

11. Audit Committee
Composition of Audit Committee

The composition of Audit Committee is given in the table as 

mentioned below:-

S. 

No.

Name of the 

Director

Designation Total meeting 

held during 

the years

Meetings

attended

1. Mr. Gopal 

Chandra Agarwal

Chairman 7 7

2. Mr. Navneet Goel Member 7 5

3. Mr. Anil Kumar 

Singh

Member 7 7

Note: 

of such committee.

in the Report on Corporate Governance which forms the part of 

Annual Report. The composition of the committees and compliances, 

are as per the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 

and Rules made thereunder and revised Clause 49 of the Listing 

Agreement.
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12. Vigil Mechanism
The Company promotes ethical behaviour in all its business activities 

and has put in place a mechanism for reporting unethical behaviour, 

fraud, violations, or bribery. The Company has Vigil Mechanism 

report violations of applicable Laws and Regulations and the Code 

of Conduct, the same can be accessed through  the Chairman of 

the Audit Commitee. The reportable matters may be disclosed to 

the Ethics and Compliance Task Force which operates under the 

supervision of the Audit Committee. Employees may also report to 

the Chairman of the Audit Committee. During the year under review, 

no employee was denied access to the Audit Committee.

13. Directors Responsibility Statement

of Directors, to the best of their knowledge and ability, conirms that:

i) in the preparation of the annual accounts for the year ended 

March 31, 2015, the applicable accounting standards had been 

followed along with proper explanation relating to material 

departures;

ii) the directors had selected such accounting policies and applied 

them consistently and made judgments and estimates that are 

reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the 

state of affairs of the Company at the end of the inancial year 

and of the proit of the Company for the year ; 

iii)  the directors had taken proper and suficient care for the 

maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with 

the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the 

assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud 

and other irregularities; 

iv) the directors have prepared the annual accounts on a going 

concern basis;

v) the directors had  laid down internal inancial controls to be 

followed by the Company and that such internal inancial controls 

are adequate and were operating effectively; 

vi) the directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance 

with the provisions of all applicable laws and that such systems 

were adequate and operating effectively.

In terms of the requirement of Accounting Standards, Segment-wise 

Results are shown in the Notes to Accounts.

14. Nomination and Remuneration Policy
Formulation of policy on director’s appointment and remuneration 

including criteria for determining qualiications, positive attributes, 

independence of a director and other matters has been provided by 

the Company in its Corporate Governance Report.

15. Particulars of Loans Given, Investment 
Made, Guarantees Given and Securities 
Provided
During the year under review, the Company has not made any loan, 

given any guarantee or provided security in connection with the loan 

to any other body corporate or person. However, the Company has 

Limited, the said company is the joint venture of your company w.e.f 

March 6, 2013.  

16. Particulars of Contracts or Arrangements 
With Related Parties 

during the inancial year with related parties were in the ordinary 

course of the business and on an arm’s length basis. During the year, 

transaction with related parties which could be considered material 

in accordance with the policy of the Company on materiality of 

related party transactions, Details of such particulars of contracts 

or arrangements with related parties referred to in sub-section (1) 

of Section 188 in the prescribed form AOC-2 as attached as an 

Annexure IV.

The policy on materiality of related party transactions and dealing with 

pdf

17. Material Changes and Commitments
There have been no material changes and commitments affecting 

the inancial position of the Company which have occurred between 

the end of the inancial year of the Company to which the inancial 

statements relate and the date of the report. However, the Company 

has set up a new formulation plant at Chopanki with effect from 

August 8, 2014.

18.Corporate Governance
Your Company has complied with the requirements of Clause 49 of 

the Listing Agreement regarding Corporate Governance.

A report on the Corporate Governance practices followed by the 

Company, the Auditors’ Certiicate on compliance of mandatory 

requirements thereof forms the part of this Annual Report. 

19. Auditors 

Statutory Auditors

Accountants having irm registration no.002067N hold ofice until 

the conclusion of the ensuing Annual General Meeting, is eligible for 
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re-appointment. They have furnished the certiicate of their eligibility 

for re-appointment, if made, as required under the Companies Act, 

2013 and they are not disqualiied for re-appointment. Further, the 

for their approval, re-appointment till the conclusion of next Annual 

General Meeting. 

Cost Auditors

In terms of the requirement of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 

Cost Accountants were re-appointed as Cost Auditors of the 

Company for conducting audit of the cost accounts maintained by 

of the Company recommend to the shareholders for their approval, 

remuneration to be paid to the Cost Auditors H300000.00 (exclusive 

Secretarial Auditor

Secretaries (M No.30099) to conduct the Secretarial Audit for the 

inancial year 2014-15. The Secretarial Audit report for the inancial 

year ended March 31, 2015 is annexed herewith as Annexure VI to 

this report. 

20. Auditors’ Report 
There are no qualiications of Auditors on the Accounts of the 

Company for the inancial year ended March 31, 2015 requiring 

There no qualiications in the Secretarial Audit Report for the 

inancial year ended March 31, 2015 and does not require further 

21. Corporate Social Responsibility
In compliance with Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 read 

with the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules 

2014, the Company has established Corporate Social Responsibility 

(CSR) Committee during the inancial year 2014-2015. 

The CSR Committee has formulated and recommended to the 

During the period under review, the Company has not contributed 

towards CSR activities, as the Company thought of undertaking the 

projects or programs of CSR on its own, therefore on February 11, 

2015, the Company has incorporated ‘IIL Foundation’ for undertaking 

the CSR projects and programs. The Company shall contribute to 

sustainable development by its economic activities combined with 

the fulillment of its social responsibilities relating to the education, 

health, safety and environment aspects. The statutory disclosures with 

respect to the CSR Committee and policy in terms of Section 135 

of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Corporate 

Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, in the form of the annual 

report on CSR Activities is laid down in Annexure V which forms 

part of this Report.

22.Insurance
The Company has taken the required insurance coverage for its 

assets against the possible risks like ire, lood, public liability, marine, 

etc.

23. Nature of Business
There is no change in the nature of business during the period under 

review.

24. Details of Signiicant & Material Orders
No signiicant and material order has been passed by the Regulators 

or Courts or Tribunals impacting the going concern status of the 

Company and Company’s operations in future, details of which needs 

Rule 8 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. 

25. Details in Respect of Adequacy of 
Internal Financial Controls

the orderly and eficient conduct of business, including adherence to 

the Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention 

and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness 

of the accounting records and timely preparation of reliable inancial 

disclosures.

26. Disclosure of Remuneration
The information as required in accordance with Section 197(12) of 

the Act read with Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and 

Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the details 

regarding the remuneration and other requisite details are mentioned 

in the Annexure II attached hereto.

No Employee, other than Mr. Hari Chand Aggarwal, Chairman cum 

Whole-time Director and Mr. Rajesh Aggarwal, Managing Director of 

the Company draw remuneration in excess of limit prescribed under 

Section 197  of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(2) of the 

Companies (Appointment and Managerial Personnel ) Rules, 2014. 

Requisite details of remuneration paid to Mr. Hari Chand Aggarwal 

and Mr. Rajesh Aggarwal (From April 1, 2014 to March 31, 2015) 

pursuant to the said provisions is as details herein:
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Name Hari Chand Aggarwal Rajesh Aggarwal

Designation Chairman cum Whole-time Director Managing Director

Nature of employment Permanent Permanent

Salary H75.99 Lacs H63.39 Lacs 

Qualiication High School

Formulation of Pesticides”

Total Experience More than 41 Years More than 21 Years

Date of Commencement of Employment 21-10-2001 18-12-1996

Previous Employment HIM Pulverizing Mills Limited HIM Pulverizing Mills Limited

Percentage of equity shares held by the 

employee in the Company

4.85 27.82

Relationship with any director or manager of 

the Company 

Father of Mr. Rajesh Aggarwal and Father in 

law of Mrs. Nikunj Aggarwal

Son of Mr. Hari Chand Aggarwal and 

Spouse of Mrs. Nikunj Aggarwal

No director of the Company who is receiving commission from the 

Company is in receipt of any remuneration or commission from any 

holding company or subsidiary company of the Company.

contribution to Provident Fund, Gratuity and Other Perquisites and 

beneits valued as per the Income Tax Act, 1961. 

27. Risk Management
The Company has formulated the Risk Management Policy through 

which the Company has identiied various risks like, strategy risk, 

industry and competition risk, operation risk,   liability risks, resource 

risk, technological risk, inancial risk. The Company faces constant 

pressure from the evolving marketplace that impacts important 

issues in risk management and threatens proit margins. The 

Company emphasizes on those risks that threaten the achievement 

of business objectives of the Group over the short to medium term. 

Your Company has adopted the mechanism for periodic assessment 

to identify, analyze, and mitigation of the risk. 

The appropriate risk identiication method will depend on the 

application area (i.e. nature of activities and the hazard groups), 

the nature of the project, the project phase, resources available, 

regulatory requirements and client requirements as to objectives, 

desired outcome and the required  level of detail.

The trend line assessment of risks, analysis of exposure and potential 

impact shall be carried out. Mitigation plans shall be inalized, owners 

identiied, and progress of mitigation actions shall be regularly and 

periodically monitored and reviewed.

Treatment options which are not necessarily mutually exclusive or 

appropriate in all circumstances shall be driven by outcomes that 

include: 

28. Performance Evaluation Report
In terms of Companies Act, 2013 and Listing Agreement entered 

into with Stock Exchanges, there is requirement of formal evaluation 

individual directors.

The evaluation criteria has been explained in the Nomination and 

Annual Report. 

29. Management Discussion And Analysis

herewith. 
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30. Conservation of Energy, Technology 
Absorption, Foreign Exchange Earnings & 
Outgo 
In terms of requirement of clause (m) of sub-section (3) of 

Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies 

Account(s) Rules, 2014, the particulars relating to conservation of 

energy, technology absorption, foreign exchange earnings and outgo, 

as required to be disclosed under the Act, are provided in Annexure 

I to this report.

31.Disclosure under the Sexual Harassment 
of Women at the Work Place (Prevention, 
Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013
The Company has in place an Anti-Sexual Harassment Policy (‘Policy’) 

in line with the requirements of The Sexual Harassment of Women 

at the Work Place (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013. 

Your Directors state that during the year under review, no cases of 

sexual harassment have been reported. 

32. Appreciation 

Government Authorities for their continued support. The Directors 

also wish to place on record their deep sense of gratitude for the 

committed services of the Executives Staff and Workers of the 

Company.

We would also like to express sincere thanks to our Shareholders for 

their conidence and understanding.

Insecticides (India) Limited                                                                      

 (Hari Chand Aggarwal)

Place: Delhi Chairman

Dated: August 25, 2015 DIN-00577015
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DETAILS REGARDING CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN
EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO[SECTION 134 (3)(M)]

1. Conservation of Energy 

During the period under review, the Company has not taken any 

steps for conservation of energy. 

energy:

During the period under review, the Company carried out initial 

surveys and looked into various alternate sources of energy. 

The Company needs more time and will make more efforts for 

inding suitable alternate sources of energy for the betterment of 

the Company. 

During the period under review, the Company has set up a new 

formulation plant at E-439-440, RIICO Industrial Area, Chopanki, 

energy.

2. Technology Absorption

Technology is ever changing and employees of the Company are 

made aware with the latest techniques and technologies through 

various workshops and discussions for optimum utilization of the 

available resources.

product development or import substitution:

Product improvement and cost reduction is always the Company’s 

priority while we choose new equipment. At the same time your 

Company does not change technology every year, but whatever 

equipment we add that is to meet the growing requirements and 

make the process cost effective.

years reckoned from the beginning of the inancial year):

Your Company has not imported any technology during last 

three years. However, the Company has spent on the research 

and development of various products as mentioned below:

The Expenditure incurred on Research and Development:

(H in Lacs)

Particulars Amount

Capital 127.63

Recurring 308.65

Total 436.28

3. Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo

the year and the Foreign Exchange outgo during the year in 

terms of actual outlows-

(H in Lacs)

Particulars Amount

Foreign exchange earned 91.32

Foreign exchange used 562.26

ANNEXURE I
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PURSUANT TO THE RULE 5(1) COMPANIES (APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION OF MANAGERIAL
PERSONNEL) RULES, 2014 

a. the ratio of the remuneration of each director to the median remuneration of the employees of the company for the inancial year 2014-15;

c. In the inancial year 2014-15, there was an increase of 10.33% in the median remuneration of employees.

d.  Total number of employees of the Company as on March 31, 2015 was 979. The Company has maintained peaceful and harmonious 

relations with all its employees.

e.  The explanation on the relationship between average increase in remuneration and company performance;

The Proit before Tax for the inancial year ended by 32%, whereas the average increase in remuneration was 11.39%. The average increase 

in median remuneration was in line with the performance of the Company.

Notes:

1. Directors at above table II are Independent Directors and received only sitting fee during the year.

2. Out of pocket expenses incurred by them for attending the meetings not taken into account.

ANNEXURE II

Table no. I (H in Lacs)

Sl. No. Name of Director Director’s Remuneration Employee Median Remuneration Ratio

1 Hari Chand Aggarwal 75.99 0.17 451:1

2 Rajesh Aggarwal 63.39 0.17 376:1

3 Nikunj Aggarwal 12.81 0.17 76:1

Sl. No. Name of Director and KMP Director/KMP % increase in remuneration

1 Hari Chand Aggarwal Chairman Cum Whole-time Director Nil

2 Rajesh Aggarwal Managing Director Nil

3 Nikunj Aggarwal Whole-time Director Nil

4 Sandeep Aggarwal Chief Financial Oficer 13.82

5 Pankaj Gupta Company Secretary 15.15

Table no. II (H in Lacs)

Sl. No. Name of Director Sitting Fee Employee Median Remuneration Ratio

1 Virjesh Kumar Gupta 1.80 0.17 11: 1

2 Navneet Goel 1.65 0.17 10: 1

3 Gopal Chandra Aggarwal 1.95 0.17 12:12

4 Navin Shah 1.30 0.17 8:1

5 Anil Kumar Singh 1.95 0.17 12:1

b. the percentage increase in remuneration of each Director, Chief Financial Oficer, Chief Executive Oficer, Company Secretary or Manager, 

if any, in the inancial year 2014-15;
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 f. Comparison of the remuneration of the Key Managerial 

Personnel against the performance of the Company: 

The Total Remuneration of KMPs increased by 4.35% from 

H91.27 Lacs in 2013-14 to H95.24 Lacs in 2014-15, whereas the 

Proit before Tax increased by 31.89% from H4865.15 Lacs in 

2013-14 to H6416.85 Lacs in 2014-15.

was H87639.30 Lacs in comparison to H27940.57 Lacs as 

on March 31, 2014 and over NSE was H87201.73 Lacs in 

comparison to H27921.55 as on March 31, 2014.

(ii) The Price Earnings Ratio was H16.38 as of March 31, 2015, 

which was an increase of 134.67%, as compared to March 31, 

2014. 

h. Average percentile increase already made in the salaries of 

employees other than the managerial personnel in 2014-15 was 

10-15% whereas the increase in managerial remuneration was 

10%. This was based on the recommendations of Nomination 

and the respective person’s performance and contribution. 

The Company’s remuneration philosophy is to ensure that it is 

competitive in the PD industry in which it operates, for attracting 

and retaining the best talent

i. Comparison of the each remuneration of the Key Managerial 

Personnel against the performance of the Company:

Name of KMP Remuneration

(H in Lacs)

Ratio of 

remuneration to 

Proit before Tax

Rajesh Aggarwal 63.39 0.0099:1

Sandeep Aggarwal 22.27 0.0035:1

Pankaj Kumar Gupta 9.58 0.0015:1

j. The key parameters for the variable component of remuneration 

Committee, as per the Remuneration Policy of the Company for 

Directors, KMPs and other Employees. 

k. The ratio of the remuneration of the highest paid director to that 

of the employees who are not directors but receive remuneration 

in excess of the highest paid director during the year NIL; and 

l. It is hereby afirmed that the remuneration paid is as per the 

Remuneration policy of the Company.
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FORM NO. AOC-1

Statement containing salient features of the inancial statement of 

subsidiaries/associate companies/joint ventures

(Pursuant to irst proviso to sub-section (3) of Section 129 read with Rule 5 of 

Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Part “A”: Subsidiaries ___________ Not Applicable

(Information in respect of each subsidiary to be presented with amounts in H)

1. Sl. No.:   

2. Name of the subsidiary

3. Reporting period for the subsidiary concerned, if different from the holding company’s reporting period

4. Reporting currency and Exchange rate as on the last date of the relevant Financial year in the case of foreign subsidiaries.

5. Share capital

7. Total assets

8. Total Liabilities

9. Investments

10. Turnover

11. Proit before taxation

12. Provision for taxation

13. Proit after taxation

14. Proposed Dividend

15. % of shareholding

Notes:  The following information shall be furnished at the end of the statement:

1. Names of subsidiaries which are yet to commence operations

2. Names of subsidiaries which have been liquidated or sold during the year.

ANNEXURE III
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Name of Associates/Joint Ventures Isec Organics Limited

(Associate Company)

OAT & IIL India 

Laboratories Private Limited 

(Joint Venture Company)

31.03.2014* 31.03.2014*

No. - 795000

- 795.00

Extend of Holding % - 20

3. Description of how there is signiicant inluence

N.A Yes*

899.15 Lacs 3652.76 Lacs

i. Considered in Consolidation - -

ii. Not Considered in Consolidation - -

1. Names of associates or joint ventures which are yet to commence operations.

2. Names of associates or joint ventures which have been liquidated or sold during the year. 

Note: 

* The inancial statements for the inancial for the year 2014-15 for both associate and joint venture Company are under process of audit, 

Hence the igures are mentioned pursuant to Audited Financial Statements as on March 31, 2014.

Part “B”: Associates and Joint Ventures

Statement pursuant to Section 129 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 related to Associate Companies and Joint Ventures

42



FORM NO. AOC-2

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of Section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the 

Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related parties referred to in sub-section 

(1) of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arms length transactions under third proviso thereto

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis: Not Applicable.

(a) Name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship

(d) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions including the value, if any

(e) Justiication for entering into such contracts or arrangements or transactions

(g) Amount paid as advances, if any:

(h) Date on which the special resolution was passed in general meeting as required under irst proviso to section 188

2. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s length basis

ANNEXURE IV

a. Name(s) of the 

related party 

and nature of 

relationship

Evergreen 

Mineral Industries 

(Associate Firm)

Paras Agro 

Industries 

(Associate Firm)

Vinod Metal 

Industries 

(Associate Firm)

Pneumatics

(Associate Firm)

Laboratories 

Private Limited 

(Joint Venture)

ISEC Organics 

Limited

(Associate

Company) 

b. Nature of 

transactions

 Agreement  Agreement Purchase

Order(s)

Purchase

Order(s)

 Agreement  Agreement

c. Duration of 

transactions

2 years 2 years 2years 2 years 2 years 2 years
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d. Salient terms of 

the contracts or 

arrangements 

or transactions 

including the 

value, if any: As 

purchase order

i. Party shall 

supply such 

products as may 

be ordered ii. 

Products will be 

iii. Products will 

be supplied with 

in a period of 

15th days from 

date of purchase 

order. 

iv. Prices of 

products could 

not be more 

than prevailing 

market prices.

v. The all 

transactions shall 

be done on arm 

length basis.

vi. Insurance of 

the products will 

be bear by the 

company.

i. Party shall 

supply such 

products as may 

be ordered ii. 

Products will be 

iii. Products will 

be supplied with 

in a period of 

15th days from 

date of purchase 

order. 

iv. Prices of 

products could 

not be more 

than prevailing 

market prices.

v. The all 

transactions shall 

be done on arm 

length basis.

vi. Insurance of 

the products will 

be bear by the 

company.

  i. Party shall 

supply the 

product with in 

15 days from 

issue of P.O.

ii. Transportation 

and insurance 

expenses shall 

be bear by the 

company

iii. The payment 

of products will 

be made within 

90 days from 

date of delivery.

iv. All transactions 

will be made on 

arm length basis.

 i. Party shall 

supply the 

product with in 

15 days from 

issue of P.O.

ii. Transportation 

and insurance 

expenses shall 

be bear by the 

company

iii. The payment 

of products will 

be made within 

90 days from 

date of delivery.

iv. All transactions 

will be made on 

arm length basis.

 i. Annual service 

fee for services 

carried out by 

the JV company 

in the proportion 

in ownership.

ii.Service tax on 

annual service 

fee shall be born 

by the company.

Iii, Payment of 

fee shall be 

made within irst 

quarter of iscal 

year.

iv. The agreement 

may be modiied 

only by written 

agreement of the 

parties.

v. Dispute 

shall be inally 

resolved by 

arbitratorwith 

the provision of 

Arbitration Rules 

of the Singapore 

International 

Arbitration 

Centre.

vi. Transactions 

under the 

agreement shall 

be made on arm 

length basis.  

i. All takes shall 

be beared by the 

company.

ii. The company 

shall not used 

the premises 

for any illegal 

purposes and not 

any hazardous 

or combustible 

articles

iii. Municipal tax 

shall be pay by 

the Isec Organics 

Ltd.

iv. The work of 

renovation shall 

be made by the 

company.

v. Rent shall be 

pay on or before 

the 15 days next 

calendar month.

e. Date(s) of 

approval by the 

f. Amount paid as 

advances, if any

Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
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Annual Report on Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Activities

1. A brief outline of the Company’s CSR policy, including overview 

of projects or programs proposed to be undertaken and a 

reference to the web-link to the CSR policy and projects or 

programs.

of Directors shall constitute the Corporate Social Responsibility 

(CSR) Committee. The Members of CSR shall be appointed by 

CSR Policy shall be through the CSR Committee. The powers of 

the CSR Committee are as follows:

i. Formulate CSR Policy and recommend the same to the 

ii. Recommend CSR activities as stated under Schedule VII of 

the Act;

iv. Spend the allocated CSR amount on the CSR activities once 

accordance with the Act and the CSR Rules;  

activities undertaken by the Company; 

vi. Monitor CSR Policy from time to time; 

vii. Authorize executives of the Company to attend the CSR 

Committee Meetings.

The Company proposes to implement its CSR activities in various 

sectors stated hereunder:

- Education

- Green Initiatives 

- Facilities for Senior Citizens

- Rural Development 

- Vocational Skills 

- Entrepreneurship Skills 

- Employment Opportunities 

- Medical Aid

- Healthcare

- Old Aged Homes 

- Women Hostels 

- Special Employment Opportunities for Women 

- Environment Protection 

- Animal Welfare 

- Conservation of Natural Resources 

- Protection of National Heritage 

- Promoting and Development of Art and Culture 

- Public Libraries 

- Promotion and Development of Traditional Arts and 

Handicrafts 

- Measures for Armed Forced Veterans, War widows and their 

dependents

- Promotion and Development of Rural Sports and National 

Game

- Development of Slum Area

The Company has formulated the CSR policy pursuant to Section 

135 of the Companies Act and Schedule VII and the weblink of 

2. Composition of the CSR Committee:

S. No Name of the members Designation

1. Mr. Hari Chand Aggarwal Chairman

2. Mr. Rajesh Aggarwal Member

3. Mr. Virjesh Kumar Gupta Member

4. Mr. Ashwani Aggarwal Member

During the year, two meetings i.e. on February, 11 2015 and 

March 25, 2015 CSR Committee were held. 

3. Average net proit of the Company for last three inancial 

years:

Average net proit: H4599.95 Lacs

4. Prescribed CSR Expenditure (two percent of the amount as in 

item 3 above): H92.00 Lacs 

ANNEXURE V
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5. Details of CSR spend for the inancial year:

a) Total amount spent for the inancial year : Nil

b) Amount unspent, if any: H92.00 Lacs

c) Manner in which the amount spent during the inancial year is detailed below:   Not Applicable, being the Company has not spent any 

amount during the year

6. In case the Company has failed to spend the two percent of the average net proit of the last three inancial years or any part thereof, the 

not spend any amount on CSR projects or programs as Company has incorporated  ‘IIL Foundation’ on February, 11 2015 and desires to 

spend the CSR contribution through such foundation on various programs and projects pursuant to CSR policy and Schedule VII of the 

Companies Act, 2013. 

7. We hereby conirm that the implementation and monitoring of CSR Policy, would be in compliance with CSR objectives and Policy of the 

Company.

Managing Director   Chairman CSR Committee

S. 

No.

Projects / 

Activities

Sector Locations Amount Outlay

(Budget) Project 

or Programs 

wise

Amount Spent

on the project 

or programs

Cumulative 

Expenditure 

upto reporting 

period

Amount spent: 

Direct or through 

implementing

agency*
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Secretarial Audit Report 

For the inancial year ended March 31,, 2015

[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No.9 of the Companies 

(Appointment and Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014]

I have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable 

statutory provisions and the adherence to good corporate practices 

by Insecticides (India) Limited (hereinafter called the Company). 

Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a 

compliances and expressing my opinion thereon.

books, forms and returns iled and other records maintained by the 

company and also the information provided by the Company, its 

oficers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of 

secretarial audit, I  hereby report that in my opinion, the company has, 

during the audit period covering the inancial year ended on March 

31, 2015, complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and 

mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the 

reporting made hereinafter.

I have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns 

iled and other records maintained by the Company for the inancial 

year ended on March 31, 2015 according to the provisions of:

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made 

thereunder;

(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and 

the rules made thereunder. 

framed thereunder.

(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules 

and regulations made thereunder to the extent of Foreign 

Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External 

(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the 

Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;

Insider Trading) Regulations, 1992; 

and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2009;

Option Scheme and Employee Stock Purchase Scheme) 

Regulations, 2014 w.e.f 28th October 2014; Not applicable 

as company has not come with ESOP or ESPS during the 

inancial year ended on March 31, 2015;

of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008; Not applicable as 

company has no listed debt securities during the inancial 

year ended on March 31, 2015;

Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding 

the Companies Act and dealing with client; 

Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009; Not applicable there was 

no delisting of equity shares during the inancial year ended 

on March 31, 2015 and;

Securities) Regulations, 1998; Not applicable as no security 

has been brought back during the inancial year ended on 

March 31, 2015. 

(vi) As informed to us by the Company there are some laws, as 

mentioned below, which is being compiled by the Company as 

industry speciic laws under the head “other laws as speciically 

applicable to company” are as follows:

(2) The Insecticides (Price, Stock, Display and Submission of 

Reports) Order, 1986

(3) The Fertilizer (Control) Order 1985

To, 

The Members,

Insecticides (India) Limited

Delhi

ANNEXURE VI
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I have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the 

following: 

(i) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company 

Secretaries of India under the Companies Act, 2013; Not 

applicable during the inancial year ended on March 31, 2015. 

(ii) The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with 

Exchange of India Limited. 

During the period under review, the Company has complied with 

the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, 

etc. mentioned above.

duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-

executive Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in 

the period under review were carried out in compliance with the 

provisions of the Act.

Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent at 

least seven days in advance, except one board meeting held on 

September 19, 2014, where the consent of Independent Directors of 

the company had been received for shorter notice. A system exists 

for seeking and obtaining further information and clariications on the 

agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at 

no dissent of any director has been recorded as a part of minutes in 

the board minutes for the inancial year ended on March 31, 2015.

I further report that there are adequate systems and processes in 

the company commensurate with the size and operations of the 

Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, 

rules, regulations and guidelines.

I further report that during the audit period:

a) The Company has issued bonus shares to its existing shareholders, 

in proportion of 1 bonus equity share of H10 each for every 2 fully 

paid up equity share of H

Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2009. The allotment of 

bonus shares have been made after expiry of two months from 

has condoned the delay on the application of company vide its 

letter dated March 26, 2015.

b) Further, the Company has also received the consent of 

shareholders of the Company through postal ballot during the 

inancial year ending March 31, 2015 to raise the funds up to 

H

funds to implement the business plans of the Company under the 

Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2009. 

Signature:

Name of Firm: Akash Gupta & Associates

Place : New Delhi Membership No.:30099

Date: August 25, 2015 C P No.:11038
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Form No. MGT-9

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

as on the inancial year ended on  March 31, 2015

[Pursuant to Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 12(1) of the Companies 

(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

I.Registration and Other Details

i. CIN :  L65991DL1996PLC083909

ii. Registration Date :  December 18, 1996

iii. Name of the Company :  Insecticides (India) Limited

v. Address of the Registered ofice and contact details :  401-402, Lusa Tower, Azadpur Commercial  

  Complex , Delhi – 110033, 

  Tele Fax No. (011) 27679700-04 

  Email – investor@insecticidesindia.com

vi. Whether listed company : Yes

vii. Name, Address and Contact details of : Alankit Assignments Limited 

  Tel. No.(011) 4254 1234 

  Fax No. (011) 4254 1967,

  Email – rta@alankit.com

ANNEXURE VII

Sl. 

No.

Name and Description of main products / 

services

NIC 2008 Code of the Product/ service % to total turnover of the company

1. Agro Chemicals Group: 202

Class: 2021

100.00

Sl. 

No.

Name and Address of the 

Company

CIN/GLN Holding/Subsidiary/

Associate

% of shares

held

Applicable Section

1

Private Limited

Joint Venture 20% Section 2(6) of the 

Companies Act, 2013

2 Isec Organics Limited Associate NIL Section 2(6) of the 

Companies Act, 2013

II. Principal Business Activities of the Company
All the business activities contributing 10 % or more of the total turnover of the company shall be stated:-

Particulars of holding, subsidiary and associate companies –
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Category of Shareholders No. of Shares held at the beginning of the year No. of Shares held at the end of the year % Change

During the 

year
Demat Physical Total % of Total 

Shares

Demat Physical Total % of Total 

Shares

A. Promoters

(1) Indian

9303000 - 9303000 73.35 9303000 - 9303000 73.35 Nil

b) Central Govt - - - - - - - - Nil

c) State Govt (s) - - - - - - - - Nil

169700 - 169700 1.34 169700 - 169700 1.34 Nil

- - - - - - - - Nil

Sub-total (A) (1):- 9472700 - 9472700 74.69 9472700 - 9472700 74.69 Nil

(2) Foreign

a) NRIs -

Individuals - - - - - - - - Nil

b) Other –

Individuals - - - - - - - - Nil

- - - - - - - - Nil

- - - - - - - - Nil

Sub-total (A) (2):- - - - - - - - - Nil

Total shareholding of 

Promoter (A) = (A)(1)+(A)

(2)

9472700 - 9472700 74.69 9472700 - 9472700 74.69 Nil

B. Public Shareholding

1. Institutions

a) Mutual Funds - - - - 165458 - 165458 1.30 1.30

675460 - 675460 5.33 676225 - 676225 5.33 -

c) Central Govt - - - - - - - - Nil

d) State Govt(s) - - - - - - - - Nil

e) Venture Capital Funds - - - - - - - - Nil

f) Insurance Companies - - - - - - - - Nil

g) FIIs 152490 - 152490 1.20 523294 - 523294 4.13 2.93

h) Foreign Venture 

Capital Funds

- - - - - - - - Nil

  Venture Capital Funds - - - - - - - - Nil

Sub-total (B)(1) 827950 - 827950 6.53 1364977 - 1364977 10.76 4.23

III. Share Holding Pattern (Equity Share Capital Breakup as Percentage of  Total Equity)

i. Category-wise Share Holding
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SI

No.

Category of 

Shareholders

No. of Shares held at the beginning of the year No. of Shares held at the end of the year % Change

During the 

year
Demat Physical Total % of Total 

Ahares

Demat Physical Total % of  Total 

Shares

1 Hari Chand Aggarwal 615600 - 615600 4.85 615600 - 615600 4.85 Nil

2 Hari Chand 996000 - 996000 7.85 996000 - 996000 7.85 Nil

3 Kritika Aggarwal 75000 - 75000 0.59 75000 - 75000 0.59 Nil

4 Nikunj Aggarwal 750000 - 750000 5.91 750000 - 750000 5.91 Nil

5 Pushpa Aggarwal 1434600 - 1434600 11.31 1434600 - 1434600 11.31 Nil

6 Rajesh Aggarwal 3528600 - 3528600 27.82 3528600 - 3528600 27.82 Nil

7 1302000 - 1302000 10.27 1302000 - 1302000 10.27 Nil

8 Sanskar Aggarwal 601200 - 601200 4.74 601200 - 601200 4.74 Nil

9 ISEC Organics Ltd. 169700 - 169700 1.34 169700 - 169700 1.34 Nil

Total 9472700 - 9472700 74.69 9472700 - 9472700 74.69 Nil

ii. Shareholding of Promoters

Category of Shareholders No. of Shares held at the beginning of the year No. of Shares held at the end of the year % Change

During the 

year
Demat Physical Total % of Total 

Shares

Demat Physical Total % of Total 

Shares

2. Non-Institutions

1014069 - 1014069 8.00 470919 - 470919 3.71 4.29

i) Indian - - - - - - - - Nil

ii) Overseas - - - - - - - - Nil

b) Individuals

i) Individual

shareholders holding 

nominal share capital 

upto H1 lakh

940653 494 941147 7.42 1069647 259 1069906 8.44 1.02

ii) Individual

shareholders holding 

nominal share capital 

in excess of H1 lakh

385966 - 385966 3.04 129285 - 129285 1.02 2.02

Sub-total (B)(2):- Total Public 2381822 494 2382316 18.78 1845030 259 1845289 14.55 4.23

Shareholding (B)=(B)(1)+(B)

(2)

3209772 494 3210266 25.31 3210007 259 3210266 25.31 Nil

C. Shares held by Custodian 

for GDRs & ADRs

- - - - - - - - Nil

Grand Total (A+B+C) 12682472 494 12682966 100.00 12682707 259 12682966 100.00 Nil
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iii. Change in Promoters’ Shareholding (please specify, if there is no change):  There is no change in Promoters Shareholding 

during the Year

iv. Shareholding Pattern of Top Ten Shareholders (other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs and ADRs): 

SI

No.

Shareholding at the beginning 

of the year

Cumulative Shareholding 

during the year

No. of shares % of total shares 

of the company

No. of shares % of total shares 

of the company

At the beginning of the year 9472700 74.69

Share holding during the year specifying the 

- - - -

At the End of the year 9472700 74.69 -

SI

No.

Shareholding at the beginning 

of the year

Shareholding at the end 

of the year

For Each of the Top 10 Shareholders No. of shares % of total shares 

of the company

No. of shares % of total shares 

of the company

1. Life Insurance Corporation of India 675000 5.32 - -

2. Zealous Financial Services Pvt. Ltd. 272916 2.15 - -

3. Vinod Infotech Pvt. Ltd. 117351 0.93 - -

4. Fidelity Northstar Fund 100000 0.79 - -

5. Kinetic Capital Services Ltd. 65000 0.51 - -

6. SMC Global Securities Ltd. 62326 0.49 - -

7. Competent Finman Pvt. Ltd. 61205 0.48 - -

8. Fiducian India Fund 52490 0.41 - -

9. Om Prakash Aggarwal 50520 0.40 - -

10. Dhampur Alco-chea Ltd. 46500 0.37 - -

Total 1503308 11.85 - -

1. Life Insurance Corporation of India - - 675000 5.32

2. Fidelity Northstar Fund - - 375000 2.96

3. HDFC Small and Mid Fund - - 165458 1.31

4. SPA Securities Ltd. - - 93315 0.74

5. Vec Aif Vec Strategic Advantage Scheme - - 78563 0.62

6. Ishaan Metals Pvt. Ltd. - - 73439 0.58

7. Fiducian India Fund - - 58340 0.46

8. Fidelity Funds - - 56408 0.45

9. - - 40000 0.32

10. Dolly Khanna - - 28574 0.23

Total - - 1644097 12.99
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v. Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel: 

IV. Indebtedness

SI

No.

Shareholding at the beginning 

of the year

Cumulative Shareholding 

during the year

For Each of the Directors and KMP No. of shares % of total shares 

of the company

No. of shares % of total shares 

of the company

Hari Chand Aggarwal 

1. At the beginning of the year 615600 4.85 - -

At the end of the Year 615600 4.85 - -

2. Rajesh Aggarwal

At the beginning of the year 3528600 27.82 - -

At the end of the Year 3528600 27.82 - -

3. Nikunj Aggarwal

At the beginning of the year 750000 5.91 - -

At the end of the Year 750000 5.91 - -

4. G. C. Agarwal

At the beginning of the year 1750 - - -

during the year specifying the reasons for increase 

sweat equity etc):

September 9, 

2014 [900 shares 

(Sold)]

- - -

At the End of the year 850 - - -

(H in Lacs)

Secured Loans 

excluding deposits

Unsecured 

Loans

Deposits Total 

Indebtedness

Indebtedness at the beginning of the inancial year 24263.60 - - 24263.60

i) Principal Amount - - - -

ii) Interest due but not paid - - - -

iii) Interest accrued but not due - - - -

Total (i+ii+iii) 24263.60 - - 24263.60

Change in Indebtedness during the inancial year

5197.17 155.45 - 5352.62

- - - -

Net Change 5197.17 155.45 - 5352.62

Indebtedness at the end of the inancial year 29460.77 - - 29460.77

i) Principal Amount - 150.00 - 150.00

ii) Interest due but not paid -   5.45 -   5.45

iii) Interest accrued but not due - - - -

Total (i+ii+iii) 29460.77 155.45 - 29616.22
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V. Remuneration of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel

A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager:

B. Remuneration/ Sitting fee to other directors:

(H in Lacs)

SI

No.

Particulars of Remuneration Name of Directors Total 

Amount
Hari Chand 

Aggarwal

Rajesh

Aggarwal

Nikunj

Aggarwal

1 Gross salary

(a) Salary as per provisions contained in section 17(1) of the 

Income-tax Act, 1961

72.00 60.00 12.00 144.00

3.99 3.99 0.81 8.20

(c) Proits in lieu of salary under section 17(3) Income-tax Act, 1961 - - - -

2 Stock Option - - - -

3 Sweat Equity - - - -

4 Commission

- as % of proit

- others, specify…

- - - -

5 Others, please specify - - - -

Total (A) 75.99 63.39 12.81 152.20

Total Managerial Remuneration 75.99 63.39 12.81 152.20

Overall Ceiling as per the Act 659.20 659.20 659.20 659.20

(H in Lacs)

SI

No.

Particulars of Remuneration Name of Directors Total 

Amount
Virjesh

Kumar Gupta

Navneet Goel Gopal

Chandra

Agarwal

Navin Shah Anil Kumar 

Singh

3 Independent Directors

committee

1.80 1.65 1.95 1.30 1.95 8.65

Total (1) 1.80 1.65 1.95 1.30 1.95 8.65

4 Other Non-Executive Directors

committee meetings

- - - - - -

Total (2) - - - - - -

Total (B)=(1+2) 1.80 1.65 1.95 1.30 1.95 8.65

Total Managerial Remuneration - - - - - -

Overall Ceiling as per the Act 659.20 659.20 659.20 659.20 659.20 659.20
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C. Remuneration To Key Managerial Personnel other than MD/Manager/WTD

VI. Penalties / Punishment/ Compounding of Offences:

(H in Lacs)

SI

No.

Particulars of Remuneration Key Managerial Personnel

Company 

Secretary

CFO Total

1 Gross salary

(a) Salary as per provisions contained in Section 17(1) of the Income-tax Act, 

1961

9.58 22.27 31.85

(b) Value of perquisites under Section 17(2) Income-tax Act, 1961 - - -

(c) Proits in lieu of salary under Section 17(3) Income-tax Act, 1961 - - -

2 Stock Option - - -

3 Sweat Equity - - -

4 Commission

- as % of proit

- others, specify…

- - -

5 Others, please specify - - -

Total (A) 9.58 22.27 31.85

Type Section of the 

Companies

Act

Brief

Description

Details of Penalty / 

Punishment/ Compounding 

fees imposed

Authority

[RD / NCLT/ 

COURT]

Appeal made, 

if any (give 

Details)

A. Company

Penalty

N.APunishment

Compounding

B. Directors

Penalty

N.APunishment

Compounding

C.  Other Oficers in Default

Penalty

N.APunishment

Compounding
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Corporate Governance reporting is a real opportunity to build 

conidence of stakeholder’s. It is the application of best management 

practices, compliance of law and adherence to ethical standard to 

achieve the Company’s objective of enhancing shareholders’ value 

and discharge of social responsibility. The Corporate Governance 

structure in the Company assigns responsibilities and entrusts 

authority among different participants in the Organization viz., the 

Company adopts and adheres to the best recognized Corporate 

Governance practices and continuously strives to better them. The 

details of the Corporate Governance compliance by the Company as 

per the amended Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement w.e.f. October 

1, 2014 with Stock Exchanges are as under:

I. Company’s Philosophy on Code of 
Governance
Insecticides (India) Limited (‘IIL’ or ‘the Company’) deines Corporate 

Governance as a process directing the affairs of the Company with 

integrity, transparency and fairness, so as to optimize its performance 

and maximize the long term shareholder value in legal and ethical 

manner, ensuring justice, courtesy, and dignity in all transactions of 

the Company. Your Company is committed to good Corporate 

Governance in all its activities and processes. 

Your Company consider stakeholders as partners in the success and 

remain committed to maximizing stakeholder value. Good Corporate 

Governance leads to long term stakeholder value.

Your Company is committed to the adoption of and adherence 

to the best Corporate Governance practices at all times and 

continuously benchmarks itself with the best standards of Corporate 

Governance, not only in form but also in spirit. Good Governance 

practices stem from the dynamic culture and positive mindset of the 

organization.

II. Board of Directors

A. Board Composition 

The Company maintains the optimum combination of Executive and 

Independent Directors having rich experience in related sectors. The 

fairness, equity and transparency in transactions with the underlying 

objective of securing long term stakeholder value, while, at the same 

time, respecting the right of all Stakeholders. 

(Eight) Directors, of which 3 (Three) are Executive Directors and 

rest 5 (Five) are Independent Directors. The composition of the 

the Listing Agreement entered with Stock Exchanges. 

pecuniary relationship or transactions with the Company during the 

year 2014-15, which may affect their judgments in any manner.

B. Number of Board Meetings held with Dates

gap of 120 days between two meeting, as against the minimum 

given below:

S. No. Date

1 May 28, 2014 (Two)

2 July 11, 2014

3 August 14, 2014

4 September 19, 2014

5 October 30, 2014

6 January 21, 2015

7 February 11, 2015

Report on 
Corporate Governance
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D. Independent Director’s Composition 

(i). Composition

Directors namely:-

i. Gopal Chandra Agarwal

ii. Navneet Goel

iii. Navin Shah

iv. Virjesh Kumar Gupta

v. Anil Kumar Singh

(ii) Declaration of Independent Director

The Company has received declarations of independence as 

2013 from Independent Directors. All requisite declarations 

E. Familiarisation Programme for Independent Director

The Familiarization Programme for Independent Directors aims to 

familiarize them with the Company, their roles, rights, responsibilities 

in the Company, nature of industry, business model of the Company 

C. Attendance of Directors at Board meetings, last Annual General Meeting (AGM) and number of other Directorships 

and Chairmanships / Memberships of Committees of each Director in various companies:

Name of the Director Designation Attendance at Meetings during 

2014-15

No. of Other

Directorship(s)*

No. of Membership(s) 

/ Chairmanship(s) of 

Board Committees in 

other Companies**
Board 

Meetings AGM

 Last

Mr. Hari Chand Aggarwal Chairman cum Whole 

Time Director

8 Yes 1 Nil

Mr. Rajesh Aggarwal Managing Director 8 Yes 2 Nil

Mrs. Nikunj Aggarwal Whole time Director 8 Yes Nil Nil

Mr. Gopal Chandra Agarwal Independent Director 8 Yes 1 Nil

Mr. Navneet Goel Independent Director 6 Yes Nil Nil

Mr. Navin Shah Independent Director 6 Yes 1 Nil

Mr. Virjesh Kumar Gupta Independent Director 8 Yes Nil Nil

Mr. Anil Kumar Singh Independent Director 8 Yes Nil Nil

* The Directorships, held by Directors as mentioned above, do not include Alternate Directorships and Directorships in Foreign 

Companies, Companies registered under Section 8 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Private Limited Companies.

Investors’ Grievance Committees in all Public Limited Companies (excluding IIL ) have been considered.

all the companies in which they are Directors. Necessary disclosures regarding Committee positions in other public companies as on 

March 31, 2015 have been made by the Directors as per Clause 49 (II) (D) of the Listing Agreement.

57INSECTICIDES (INDIA) LIM ITED | Annual Report 2014-15



within the Company. The Company is regularly updating with 

presentations on various related matters, where Directors get an 

opportunity to interact with Senior Management. Presentations, 

inter alia, cover the Company’s strategy, business model, operations, 

markets, organization structure, Independent Directors have the 

freedom to interact with the Company’s management.

The details of programme for familiarization of Independent Directors 

with the company are placed at company’s website at the product 

offerings, inance, risk management framework, quarterly and annual 

results, human resources, technology, quality and such other areas as 

may arise from time to time. With such presentation the Independent 

Directors are updated with the Company and its environment

Programme%20for%20Indepdent%20Directors%20Draft%20

website.pdf

F. Independent Directors’ Compensation and Disclosures

Directors and as reviewed by the Nomination and Remuneration 

Committee in pursuance of the Nomination and Remuneration 

Policy.

The Independent Directors are paid sitting fee as per reviewed by 

the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and ixed by the 

provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 along-with the rules made 

there under. The Independent Directors did not have any material 

pecuniary relationship or transactions with the Company except the 

payment of sitting fees to them during the year 2014-15. No stock 

options were granted to Independent Directors during the year 

under review.

Independent Directors are not serving as Independent Directors in 

more than Seven Listed Companies.

Table No. 1

S. 

No.

Name of the Director Sitting Fee 

(Rupees in 

Lacs)

No. of 

Shares held

1. Mr. Gopal Chandra 

Agarwal

1.95 850

2. Mr. Navneet Goel 1.65 Nil

3. Mr. Navin Shah 1.30 Nil

4. Mr. Virjesh Kumar 

Gupta

1.80 Nil

5. Mr. Anil Kumar Singh 1.95 Nil

H. Compliance

The Company Secretary, while preparing the agenda, notes on agenda, 

minutes, etc. of the meeting(s), is responsible for and is required to 

ensure adherence to all the applicable laws and regulations including 

the Companies Act, 2013 read with the rules issued thereunder. 

with respect to the various laws applicable to the Company, as well 

as taken by the Company to rectify the instances of non-compliance, 

if any.

I. Code of Conduct

Members and Senior Management of the Company. The copies of 

Code of Conduct as applicable to the Executive Directors (including 

Senior Management of the Company) and Independent have 

been sent to all the Directors and Senior Management Personnel. 

The Code of Conduct is available on the Company’s website 

www.insecticidesindia.com and copy of the Code of Conduct can 

be inspected at the registered ofice of the Company during the 

business hours. 

personnel have afirmed compliance with the Code of Conduct as 

applicable to them during the year ended on March 31, 2015. The 

Annual Report of the Company contains declaration duly signed by 

the Managing Director.

J. Relationship among the Directors

S. 

No.

Name of the Director Relationship with other 

Disclosures

1 Mr. Hari Chand Aggarwal Father of Mr. Rajesh Aggarwal 

and father-in law of Mrs. 

Nikunj Aggarwal

2 Mr. Rajesh Aggarwal Son of Mr. Rajesh Aggarwal 

and Husband of Mrs. Nikunj 

Aggarwal

3 Mrs. Nikunj Aggarwal Daughter in law of Mr. Hari 

Chand Aggarwal and Spouse 

of Mr. Rajesh Aggarwal 

III. Audit Committee
A. Composition, its Meetings and Attendance

changed, with effect from June 1, 2014, the current composition 

of Audit Committee constitutes Mr. Gopal Chandra Agarwal 

(Chairman), Mr. Navneet Goel and Mr. Anil Kumar Singh as 

Members. Till May 31, 2014, the Committee comprises of Mr. 

Navneet Goel (Chairman), Mr. Gopal Chandra Agarwal and Mr. 

Anil Kumar Singh as Members.
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as on May 28, 2014 (two), August 14, 2014, October 30, 2014,  

January 21, 2015, February 11, 2015 and March 18, 2015 . The 

number of meetings held and number of meetings attended by the 

Members during the year are given below:

Name of the 

Director

Designation Number of 

Meetings

held

Number of 

Meetings

attended

Mr. Gopal 

Chandra Agarwal

Chairman 7 7

Mr. Navneet Goel Member 7 5

Mr. Anil Kumar 

Singh

Member 7 7

the Secretary to the Committee.

B. Terms of Reference

The Committee has Audit Committee Charter. The terms of 

reference of the Audit Committee include inter-alia:

a) Oversight of the Company’s inancial reporting process and the 

disclosure of its inancial information;

b) Recommendation for appointment, remuneration and terms of 

appointment of auditors of the Company;

c) Approval of payment to statutory auditors for any other services 

rendered by them.

d) Reviewing with the management, the annual inancial statements 

and auditor’s report thereon.

e) Matters required to be included in the Director’s Responsibility 

f) Changes, if any, in accounting policies and practices and reasons 

for the same.

g) Signiicant adjustments made in the inancial statements arising 

out of audit indings.

h) Compliance with listing and other legal requirements relating to 

inancial statements.

i) Approval of the related party transactions as per policy of the 

Company.

j) Review and monitor the auditor’s independence and 

performance, and effectiveness of audit process.

k) Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments.

l) Evaluation of internal inancial controls and risk management 

systems.

m) Reviewing with the management, performance of statutory and 

internal auditors, adequacy of the internal control systems.

n) Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function, if any, including 

frequency of internal audit.

o) Discussion with internal auditors of any signiicant indings and 

follow up there on.

p) Reviewing the indings of any internal observations by the 

internal auditors into matters where there is irregularity or 

a failure of internal control systems of a material nature and 

reporting the matter to the board.

q) Discussion with statutory auditors before the audit commences, 

about the nature and scope of audit as well as post-audit 

discussion to ascertain any area of concern.

r) To review the functioning of the Vigil mechanism.

s) Management discussion and analysis of inancial condition and 

results of operations.

IV. Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee

A. Composition, its Meetings and Attendance

Remuneration Committee got changed, with effect from June 1, 

2014, the current composition of Nomination and Remuneration 

Committee constitutes Mr. Gopal Chandra Agarwal (Chairman), 

Mr. Virjesh Kumar Gupta and Mr. Navin Shah as Members. Till May 

31, 2014, the Committee comprises of Mr. Virjesh Kumar Gupta 

(Chairman), Mr. Gopal Chandra Agarwal and Mr. Navin Shah, as 

Member.

Committee Meetings were held as on May 28, 2014, August 14, 

2014, January 21, 2015 and February 11, 2015. The number of 

meetings held and number of meetings attended by the members 

during the year are given below:

Name of the 

Director

Designation Number of 

Meetings

held

Number of 

Meetings

attended

Mr. Gopal 

Chandra Agarwal

Chairman 4 4

Mr. Virjesh Kumar 

Gupta

Member 4 4

Mr. Navin Shah Member 4 3

the Secretary to the Committee.
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B. Terms of Reference

The Terms of reference of Nomination and Remuneration Committee 

include:

a) To identify persons who are qualiied to become Directors and 

who may be appointed in senior management in accordance 

appointment and removal and to carry out evaluation of every 

Directors’ performance.

b) Formulation of the criteria for determining qualiications, positive 

attributes and independence of the Director and recommend to 

Key Managerial Personnel and other employees.

Company the compensation package, service agreements 

Director(s). 

performance of the Key Managerial Personnel.

e) Formulate, amend and administer stock options plans and 

employees of the Company. 

appropriate to Senior Management of the Company.

g) Consider other matters, as from time to time be referred to it 

C. Nomination and Remuneration & Board Diversity 

Policy

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee, pursuant to Section 

178 of the Companies Act 2013 and Clause 49 of the Listing 

Agreement entered with Stock Exchanges and on recommendation 

key managerial personnel and other employees which is as follows:-

Legal Framework

oficial more transparent, the Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act’) requires 

inter-alia, setting up the criteria of Nomination of Directors, Key 

Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, Senior Management and other 

employees. The constitution of Nomination and Remuneration 

Committee and this Policy is in compliance with Section 178 of the 

Companies Act, 2013 read along with the rules there under and 

Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement.

Deinitions

For the purpose of this Policy:

Limited;

Committee of the Company, constituted and re-constituted by the 

149 (6) of the Companies Act, 2013;

Manager

(ii) Whole-time Director (WTD);

(iii) Chief Financial Oficer (CFO);

(iv) Company Secretary (CS);

(v) Such other oficer as may be prescribed.

of Directors. This would also include all members of management 

one level below the executive directors including all functional 

heads.

Objective & Purpose

The objective and purpose of this Policy are as follows:

identifying persons who are qualiied to become Directors 

(Executive and Non-Executive) and persons who may be 

appointed in Senior Management and Key Managerial positions 

and to determine remuneration of Directors, Key Managerial 

Personnel and Other Employees.

inancial position and trends and practices on remuneration 

prevailing in peer companies in the agro chemicals industry.

dedication and achievement relating to the Company’s operations.

sustainability of talented managerial persons and create competitive 

advantage.
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Scope of the Policy

The policy shall be applicable to the following in the Company:

Constitution

executive directors, a majority of whom shall be independent 

directors. 

Nominate

1. Appointment criteria and qualiications

1.1 Letter of appointment shall be issued based on the 

recommendations of the Committee on the basis of the 

guidelines for the same under the Companies Act, 2013 or the 

Company’s Internal policy.

1.2 The Committee shall identify and ascertain the integrity, 

qualiication, expertise and experience for appointment to the 

1.3 A potential candidate should possess adequate qualiication, 

for appointment. The Committee shall review qualiications, 

expertise and experience, as well as the ethical and moral 

qualities possessed by such person, commensurate to the 

requirement for the position.

1.4 The Committee shall determine the suitability of appointment 

ascertaining the ‘it and proper criteria’ of the candidate. The 

candidate shall, at the time of appointment, as well as at the time 

of renewal of directorship, ill in such form as approved by the 

Committee to enable the Committee to determine the ‘Fit and 

Proper Criteria’. The indicative form to be illed out is placed as 

Annexure 1 to this Policy.

1.5 The Company shall not appoint or continue the employment 

of any person as whole time director who has attained the age 

of seventy years. Provided that the term of the person holding 

this position may be extended beyond the age of seventy years 

with the approval of shareholders by passing a special resolution 

based on the explanatory statement annexed to the notice 

for such motion indicating the justiication for extension of 

appointment beyond seventy years.

1.6 The Committee shall ensure that there is an appropriate 

members of senior management, and KMPs;

concerning any matters relating to the continuation in ofice of 

any director at any time including the suspension or termination 

of service of an executive director as an employee of the 

Company subject to the provision of the law and their service 

contract.

S. 

No.

Name Designation Proile

1 Gopal Chandra Agarwal Chairman Mr. Gopal Chandra Aggarwal, aged 55 years, is a Chartered Accountant by qualiication. 

Presently, he is a Practicing Chartered Accountant and currently based in Delhi. He is a 

person of repute in his community and has the vast knowledge of Finance Sector and he 

has more than 30 years of experience.

2 Virjesh Kumar Gupta Member Mr. Virjesh Kumar Gupta, aged 65 years, belongs to a business family of Delhi. After a 

professional with in depth understanding and hands on experience in diverse business ield 

for 0ver 35 years. He has specialized in general management covering almost all aspects 

of day to day business activities. He is currently associated with various Educational and 

Charitable Societies.

3 Navin Shah Member Mr. Navin Shah, aged 70 years, belongs to a business family of Delhi. He started his 

business career in plastic industries. Mr. Navin Shah has more than 40 years experience in 

manufacturing in PVC compound.
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1.8 The Committee shall recommend any necessary changes to the 

2. Term / Tenure

The Company shall appoint or re-appoint any person as its 

Director or Executive Director for a term not exceeding three 

years at a time.

No re-appointment shall be made earlier than one year before 

the expiry of term of the Director appointed.

2.2 Independent Director

An Independent Director shall hold ofice for a term up to 5 

for re-appointment on passing of a special resolution by the 

report.

No Independent Director shall hold ofice for more than two 

consecutive terms, but such Independent Director shall be 

eligible for re- appointment in the Company as Independent 

Director after the expiry of 3 (Three) years from the date of 

cessation as such in the Company. The Committee shall take into 

consideration all the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 

2013 and the relevant rules, as existing or as may be amended 

from time to time.

3. Removal

Due to reasons for any disqualiication mentioned in the 

Companies Act, 2013 and rules made there under or under 

any other applicable Act, rules and regulations, the Committee 

removal of a director, KMP or senior management personnel or 

functional heads, subject to the provisions and compliance of the 

Act, rules and regulations.

4. Retirement

retire as per the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 

2013 along with the rules made there under and the prevailing 

attaining the retirement age, for the beneit of the Company.

5. Diversity on the Board of the Company

by diversifying it and obtain the beneit out of it by better and 

improved decision making. In order to ensure that the Company’s 

boardroom has appropriate balance of skills, experience and 

diversity of perspectives that are imperative for the execution 

of its business strategy, the Company shall consider a number of 

factors, including but not limited to skills, industry experience, 

background, race and gender. 

The Policy shall conirm with the following two principles for 

remuneration of the directors will be based on their 

performance and competence; and

ensure fairness and equality shall be adopted and there shall 

be zero tolerance for unlawful discrimination and harassment 

of any sort whatsoever. 

In order to ensure a balanced composition of executive, non-

shall consider candidates from a wide variety of backgrounds, 

without discrimination based on the following factors:

Gender - The Company shall not discriminate on the basis of 

The Company encourages the appointment of women at 

senior executive levels to achieve a balanced representation 

Age - Subject to the applicable provisions of Companies Act, 

2013, age shall be no bar for appointment of an individual as 

Nationality and ethnicity - The Company shall promote having 

a boardroom comprising of people from different ethnic 

backgrounds so that the directors may eficiently contribute 

their thorough knowledge, sources and understanding for the 

beneit of Company’s business.

Physical disability - The Company shall not discriminate on 

the basis of any immaterial physical disability of a candidate 

eficiently discharge the assigned duties.

Educational quali�cation - The proposed candidate shall possess 

her position in the Company. The Directors of the Company 

shall have a mix of inance, legal and management background, 

that taken together, provide the Company with considerable 

experience in a range of activities including varied industries, 

education, government, banking, and investment. 
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6. Remuneration

6.1 In discharging its responsibilities, the Committee shall have 

regard to the following Policy objectives:

equitable and aligned with the long-term interests of the 

Company and its shareholders;

will be determined by the Committee and recommended to the 

conditions laid down in the Articles of Association of the 

Company and as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 

and the rules made there under.

Directors comprising of members of Management one level 

below the Executive Director, including the Functional Heads 

management:

6.5.1 Fixed pay

management shall be eligible for a monthly remuneration as 

the Committee and the shareholders wherever applicable. The 

breakup of the pay scale and quantum of perquisites including, 

employer’s contribution towards provident fund, pension 

scheme, medical expenses, club fees and other perquisites shall 

of the Committee.

6.5.2 Minimum Remuneration

If in any inancial year, the Company has no proits or its proits 

Whole-time Director in accordance with the provisions of 

Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013 and if the Company is 

not able to comply with such provisions, previous approval of 

the Central Government shall be required to be obtained.

6.6.1Remuneration:

as per the slabs and conditions mentioned in the Articles of 

Association of the Company and with the provisions of 

Companies Act, 2013 along with the rules made there under.

6.6.2 Sitting Fees: 

receive remuneration by way of fees for attending meetings of 

fees shall not exceed the limits prescribed under Companies Act 

2013.

Minutes of Committee Meeting

Proceedings of all meetings must be recorded as minutes and signed 

by the Chairman of the Committee at the subsequent meeting. 

Minutes of the Committee meetings will be tabled at the subsequent 

Disclosure of this Policy 

The policy shall be disclosed in the Annual Report of the Company, 

as required under Companies Act, 2013, Rules made there under and 

the Listing Agreement, as amended from time to time and as may be 

required under any other law for the time being in force.

Review

The Committee as and when required shall assess the adequacy 

of this Policy and make any necessary or desirable amendments to 

and best practice.
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Annexure-1- Criteria for determination of the ‘Fit and Proper Criteria’.

Name of Company: Insecticides (India) Limited

Declaration and Undertaking

I. Personal details of the Candidate/ Director

a. Full name

b.

c. Educational Qualiications

d. 

e. Permanent Address

f. Present Address

g.

h. Permanent Account Number under the 

Income Tax Act

i. Relevant knowledge and experience

j. Any other information relevant to 

Directorship of the Company.

II. Relevant Relationships of Candidate/ Director

a. List of Relatives if any who are connected 

with the Company (w.r.t. the Companies 

Act, 2013)

b.

is considered as being interested [w.r.t. 

Section 184 of the Companies Act, 2013]

c. 

she is or has been a member of the board 

during the last 3 years (giving details of 

period during which such ofice was held)

III. Records of professional achievements

a. Relevant Professional achievements
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V.  Any other explanation/ information in regard to items I to III and other information considered relevant for judging it and proper.

Undertaking

1. I conirm that the above information is to the best of my knowledge and belief true and complete. I undertake to keep the Company fully 

informed, as soon as possible, of all events which take place subsequent to my appointment which are relevant to the information provided 

above.

2. I also undertake to execute the deed of covenant required to be executed by all directors of the Company.

Place:

Signature:

Date:

VI. Remarks of Nomination Committee

Place:

Signature:

Date:

IV.  Proceedings, if any, against the Candidate/ Director

a. If the person is a member of a professional 

action, if any, pending or commenced or 

resulting in conviction in the past against 

occupation at any time.

b. Whether the person attracts any of the 

disqualiications envisaged under Section 

164 of the Companies Act 2013?

c. Whether the person in case of 

appointment as Executive Chairman, 

Managing Director, Whole-time Director 

attracts any of the disqualiication 

envisaged under Schedule V of Companies 

Act, 2013?

d. Whether the person at any time come to 

the adverse notice of a regulator such as 

65INSECTICIDES (INDIA) LIM ITED | Annual Report 2014-15



D. Remuneration of Directors

The table below shows the amount paid to the Executive Directors of the Company for the Financial Year 2014-15:

Name Mr. Hari Chand Aggarwal Mr. Rajesh Aggarwal Mrs. Nikunj Aggarwal

Designation Chairman cum Whole-time 

Director

Managing Director Whole time Director

H in Lacs) 68.40 57.00 11.40

H in Lacs) 3.60 3.00 0.60

Perquisites (H in Lacs) 4.00 3.40 0.82

H) Nil Nil Nil

Stock options Nil Nil Nil

Tenure 5 years 5 years 5 years

One Month One Month One Month

Performance Criteria As per Agreement As per Agreement As per Agreement

premium paid is not available.

The details of the number of shares held by the Independent Directors are given in Table 1 above.

V. Stakeholders Relationship Committee

A. Composition, its Meetings and Attendance

Committee got changed, with effect from June 1, 2014, the current 

composition of Nomination and Remuneration Committee 

constitutes Mr. Navneet Goel (Chairman), Mr. Virjesh Kumar Gupta 

and Mr. Anil Kumar Singh as Members. Till May 31, 2014, the 

Committee comprises of Mr. Gopal Chandra Agarwal (Chairman), 

Mr. Virjesh Kumar Gupta and Mr. Anil Kumar Singh as Members.

Meetings were held as on May 28, 2014, June 28, 2014, August 

14, 2014, October 30, 2014 , December 19, 2014 and February 

11, 2015. The number of meetings held and number of meetings 

attended by the Members during the year are given below:

Name of the 

Director

Designation Number of 

Meetings

held

Number of 

Meetings

attended

Mr. Navneet Goel Chairman 6 5

Mr.  Virjesh 

Kumar Gupta

Member 6 6

Mr.  Anil Kumar 

Singh

Member 6 6

Mr.  Gopal 

Chandra 

Agarwal*

Chairman 1 1

* Till May 31, 2014 Mr. Gopal Chandra Agarwal, being Chairman of 

the Stakeholder Relationship Committee attended one Meeting

Mr. Pankaj Gupta, Company Secretary of the Company acted as 

the Secretary to the Committee.

B. Terms of Reference

The Terms of reference of Stakeholders Relationship Committee 

include:

a) To consider and resolve the grievances of Security holders of the 

Company.

b) To approve applications for transfer, transmission, transposition 

of shares and mutation of share certiicates including issue of 

duplicate certiicates, split, sub-division or consolidation of 

certiicates and to deal with all related matters.

relating to: 

i. Transfer of shares;

ii. Non-receipt of dividends;

iii. Non-receipt of annual reports; and

d) The Committee will oversee the performance of the Registrar 

and Share Transfer Agents of the Company.

e) Such other matters as may be required, from time to time, by 

any statutory or regulatory authority to be attended by the 

Committee;
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f) Consider other matters, as from time to time be referred to it by 

C. Details of No. of Shareholder’s complaint received, No. of 

Complaints not solved to the satisfaction of shareholders 

and No. of pending complaints

Sl. 

No.

Nature of Complaints Received Resolved Pending

1 Non-receipt of 

Dividend Warrants in 

respect of Shares

Nil Nil Nil

2 Non- receipt of 

Annual Report

One One Nil

Total One One Nil

D. Compliance Oficer

Mr.  Pankaj Gupta, Company Secretary of the Company is Compliance 

Oficer.

VI.Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) 
Committee

A. Composition, its Meetings and Attendance

The Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee comprises of 

Mr. Hari Chandra Aggarwal (Chairman), Mr. Rajesh Aggarwal , Virjesh 

Kumar Gupta and Mr. Ashwani Aggarwal as Members.

2 (Two) meetings of the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee 

were held on February 11, 2015 and March 25, 2015.

Sl. 

No.

Name of the 

Director

Designation Total 

meeting

held during 

the years

Meetings

attended

1. Hari Chand 

Aggarwal

Chairman 2 2

2. Rajesh Aggarwal Member 2 2

3. Virjesh Kumar 

Gupta

Member 2 2

4. Ashwani

Aggarwal

Member 2 2

Mr. Pankaj Gupta, Company Secretary of the Company acted as the 

Secretary to the Committee.

B. Terms of Reference

The Terms of reference of Corporate Social Responsibility Committee 

includes:

Responsibility Policy which shall indicate the activity or activities 

to be undertaken by the Company as per the Schedule VII of the 

Companies Act, 2013;

b) To recommend the amount of expenditure to be incurred on 

the activities related to CSR; and

c) To monitor the Corporate Social Responsibility Policy of the 

Company from time to time.

SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

During the year under review, the Company does not have any 

subsidiary company. Therefore, there is no requirement of reviewing 

the inancial statements of unlisted company by Audit Committee. 

RISK MANAGEMENT

of Directors about the Risk Management and its minimization 

these procedures periodically.

GENERAL BODY MEETINGS

A. Annual General Meetings

During the preceding three years, the Company’s Annual General 

– 110054.

The date and time of Annual General Meetings held during last three 

follows:

Year Date Venue Time Special-

Resolution

- Passed

2012 September

25, 2012 Auditorium, 

Civil Lines, 

Delhi – 

110054

4.30 P.M. No

2013 August 27, 

2013 Auditorium, 

Civil Lines, 

Delhi – 

110054

9.30 A.M. Yes

2014 September

19, 2014 Auditorium, 

Civil Lines, 

Delhi – 

110054

1.00 P.M. Yes
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B. Special Resolution(s) passed through Postal Ballot

Sl. 

No.

Description of Resolution Total Voting Voting in Favour Voting Against Voting Invalid

1 Increase in Authorised Share Capital 9139341 9137912 NIL 1429

2 Alteration of Objects Clause III 9139341 9137832 Nil 1509

3 9139341 9137832 Nil 1509

4

Act, 2013

9139205 9137511 265 1429

5

2013

9139291 9134517 265 4509

A. Disclosure on materially signiicant related party transactions, i.e. the Company’s transactions that are of material nature, with its 

Promoters, Directors and the management of the Company and their relatives or subsidiaries, among others that may have potential 

con�ict with the Company’s interests at large

this, the Company has no material signiicant transaction with the related parties’ viz. promoters, directors of the Company, management, 

their relatives, subsidiaries of promoter Company etc. that may have a potential conlict with the interest of the Company at large.

B. Disclosure of Accounting Treatment

  There has not been any change in accounting policies of the Company during the year while preparing the annual inancial statements 

for the year ended on March 31, 2015.

C. Details of non-compliance by the Company, penalties and strictures imposed on the Company by Stock Exchanges or SEBI, or any 

other statutory authority, on any matter related to capital markets during last three years.

  There has been no instance of non-compliance by the Company on any matter related to capital markets during last three years, and 

D. Vigil Mechanism (Whistle Blower) Policy

  The Company promotes ethical behaviour in all its business activities and has put in place a mechanism of reporting illegal or unethical 

behaviour. The Company has a whistle blower policy wherein the employees are free to report violations of laws, rules, regulations or 

unethical conduct to their immediate supervisor or such other person as may be notiied by the management to the workgroups. The 

conidentiality of those reporting violations is maintained and they are not subjected to any discriminatory practice. No personnel has 

been denied access to the Audit Committee.

Sl. 

No.

Description of Resolution Total Voting Voting in Favour Voting Against Voting Invalid

1 Further Issue of Securities 9807343 9807166 30 147

None of the businesses proposed to be transacted in the ensuing Annual General Meeting require passing a special resolution and no resolution 

is proposed to be passed through postal ballot.
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E. Adoption of Mandatory and Non- Mandatory Requirements of Clause 49

  The Company has complied with all the mandatory requirements of Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement. Further, the Company had not 

adopted any non-mandatory requirements as mentioned in the Clause 49.

F. Proceeds from Public Issue, Rights Issue, Preferential Issues, etc.

  The Company has not done any further issue of shares during the period under review.

A. Quarterly Results

  The Company’s quarterly results are published in ‘Mint (English) and ‘Rastriya Sahara (Hindi)’, and are displayed on its website (www.

insecticidesindia.com). 

B. News Releases, Presentations, among others 

  Oficial news releases and oficial media releases are sent to Stock Exchanges.

C. Presentations to Institutional Investors / Analysts

  The Company has displayed the presentations on the website (www.insecticidesindia.com) 

D. Website

  The Company’s oficial news and other important investor related information are periodically displayed and updated on the company’s 

website (www.insecticidesindia.com). Also, the website of the Company contains a separate dedicated section ‘Investor Desk’ where 

shareholders’ information is available. The Company’s Annual Report is also available in a user-friendly and downloadable form.

Annual General Meeting

(i) Date, Time and Venue Tuesday, September 22, 2015

1:00 P.M. 

Civil Lines, Delhi – 110 054

(ii) Financial year April 01, 2014 to March 31, 2015

(iii) Date of Book Closure

(iv) Dividend Payment Date H

year 2014-15, subject to approval by the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

(iv) Listing on Stock Exchange Bombay Stock Exchange Ltd. (BSE)

P. J.  Towers, Dalal Street, Mumbai – 400 001

The National Stock Exchange of India Ltd. (NSE)

Mumbai – 400 051 

Annual custodian charges of Depository have also been paid to NSDL and CDSL.

(vi) Stock Code 

(vii) ISIN No. INE 070I01018
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(viii) Market Price data in comparison to BSE SENSEX and NSE NIFTY:

Month Company’s Performance BSE Sensex NSE Nifty

High (H) Low (H) High(H) Low(H) High(H) Low(H)

April, 2014 293.70 215.00 137.10 116.90 137.20 116.25

May, 2014 332.30 271.25 154.95 116.00 155.90 115.80

June, 2014 442.00 305.00 154.40 122.00 154.80 123.65

July, 2014 473.70 371.05 144.95 119.30 145.10 119.05

August, 2014 625.00 425.00 226.85 134.00 226.80 133.60

September, 2014 809.45 602.65 244.00 198.05 243.85 197.00

October, 2014 889.00 660.00 227.95 202.00 228.00 203.00

November, 2014 899.15 806.50 259.00 185.40 259.35 184.85

December, 2014 931.80 780.00 228.00 191.10 228.00 192.50

January, 2015 915.00 828.15 239.40 200.75 239.65 200.00

February 854.90 710.00 261.85 212.00 262.00 211.80

March 773.75 648.50 243.75 200.00 243.80 199.45

Source: www.bseindia.com and www.nseindia.com

(ix) Performance in comparison to Broad –based indices with BSE Sensex

Month Company’s Performance BSE Sensex

High(H) Low(H) High(H) Low(H)

April, 2014 293.70 215.00 22,939.31 22,197.51

May, 2014 332.30 271.25 25,375.63 22,277.04

June, 2014 442.00 305.00 25,725.12 24,270.20

July, 2014 473.70 371.05 26,300.17 24,892.00

August, 2014 625.00 425.00 26,674.38 25,232.82

September, 2014 809.45 602.65 27,354.99 26,220.49

October, 2014 889.00 660.00 27,894.32 25,910.77

November, 2014 899.15 806.50 28,822.37 27,739.56

December, 2014 931.80 780.00 28,809.64 26,469.42

January, 2015 915.00 828.15 29,844.16 26,776.12

February, 2015 854.90 710.00 29,560.32 28,044.49

March, 2015 773.75 648.50 30,024.74 27,248.45

Source:  www.bseindia.com
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(x) Registrar and Share Transfer Agent 

Alankit Assignments Limited 

Alankit House 

New Delhi – 110 055 

Fax No. (011) 4254 1967 

Email: rta@alankit.com

(xi) Share Transfer System 

Shares lodged for transfer at the Registrar’s address and same are normally processed and approved by Mr. Pankaj Gupta, Company 

Secretary of the Company and the details of the same are noted in the Stakeholders Relationship Committee. . 

(xii) Distribution of Shareholding

Share Ownership Pattern as on March 31, 2015

(xiii) Dematerialization of Shares and Liquidity

During the year under review, nil shares were dematerialized and did not affect the liquidity of the Company.

(xiv) Reconciliation of Share Capital Audit

and CDSL and those held in physical form. This audit is carried out on quarterly basis and the report thereof is submitted to the Stock 

Exchanges, where the Company’s shares are listed.     

(xv) Outstanding GDRs / Warrants and Convertible Bonds, Conversion Date and likely impact on Equity

(xvi) Plant Locations

Presently, your Company is a manufacturing unit and has 6 (Six) Plants located at the following places:

Description of Resolution No. of shares held % of Share-holding

Promoter and Promoter Group 9472700 74.69

Mutual Funds 165458 1.30

676225 5.33

FIIs 523294 4.13

96531 0.76

470919 3.71

Trust 78648 0.62

Indian Public 1199191 9.46

TOTAL 12682966 100.00
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(xvii) Address for Correspondence

Insecticides (India) Limited 

401-402, Lusa Tower, 

Azadpur Commercial Complex, 

Delhi – 110 033 

Tel Fax. (011) 2767 9700 – 04 

Email – investor@insecticidesindia.com

A certiicate, in accordance with the requirements of Clause 49(V) of the Listing Agreement, duly signed by the Managing Director and Chief 

by it.

The Company has obtained the certiicate from its Statutory Auditors regarding compliance with the provisions relating to Corporate 

Stock Exchanges along with the Annual Report to be iled by the Company.

DECLARATION BY MANAGING DIRECTOR

have afirmed for the year ended on March 31, 2015 compliance with the Code of Conduct of the Company laid down for them.

Place: Delhi (Rajesh Aggarwal)

Date: August 12, 2015 Managing Director

  DIN: 00576872
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CERTIFICATE

To,

The Members of 

Insecticides (India) Limited

401 – 402, Lusa Tower,

Azadpur Commercial Complex,

Delhi – 110 033

We have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by Insecticides (India) Limited, for the year ended March 31, 2015, 

as stipulated in Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement of the said Company with Stock Exchanges.

The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the management. Our examination has been limited a review 

of the procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the Company for ensuring the compliance of the conditions of the Corporate 

Governance as stipulated in the said Clause, it is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the inancial statements of the Company.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and the representations made by the Directors 

and Management, we certify that the Company has complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in Clause 49 of the 

above mentioned Listing Agreement.

We further state that such compliance is neither as assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor the eficiency or effectiveness with 

which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

  For Mohit Parekh & Co.

  Chartered Accountants

  Mohit A Parekh

Partner

Place: Delhi M. No. – 81069

Date: August 25, 2015                                                                                                         Firm Regn. No.002067N
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Independent Auditor’s Report

To 

The Members of 

INSECTICIDES (INDIA) LIMITED

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying inancial statements of Insecticides 

(India) Limited (“the company”),which comprise the Balance Sheet 

as at 31 March 2015, the Statement of Proit and Loss, the Cash 

Flow Statement for the year then ended and a summary of signiicant 

accounting policies and other explanatory information. 

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters in 

section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect 

to the preparation and presentation of these inancial statements that 

give a true and fair view of the inancial position, inancial performance 

and cash lows of the Company in accordance with the accounting 

principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting 

Standards speciied under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of 

the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. This responsibility also includes 

the maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance 

with the provision of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the 

Company and for preventing and detecting the frauds and other 

irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting 

policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and 

prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate 

internal inancial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring 

the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,   relevant 

to the preparation and presentation of the inancial statements that 

give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, 

whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these inancial 

statements based on our audit. We have taken into account the 

provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and 

matters which are required to be included in the audit report under 

the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on 

Auditing speciied under section 143(10) of the Act. Those Standards 

require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and 

perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the 

inancial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence 

about the amounts and the disclosures in the inancial statements. 

The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including 

the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the inancial 

statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk 

assessments, the auditor considers internal inancial control relevant to 

the Company’s preparation of the inancial statements that give true 

and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate 

in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an 

opinion on whether the company has in place an adequate internal 

inancial controls system over inancial reporting and the operating 

effectiveness of such controls. An audit also includes evaluating the 

appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness 

of the accounting estimates made by Company’s Directors, as well as 

evaluating the overall presentation of the inancial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is suficient and 

appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the inancial 

statements.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to 

the explanations given to us, the aforesaid inancial statements, give 

the information required by the Act in the manner so required and 

give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles 

generally accepted in India; of the state of affairs of the Company 

as at March 31, 2015; and its Proits and its Cash Flows for the year 

ended on that date.

Report on other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order,2015 

(‘’the order”) issued by the Central Government of India in 

terms of sub-section (11) of Section 143 of the Act, we give 

in the Annexure a statement on the matters speciied in the 

paragraph 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2. As required by section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and 

explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief 

were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion proper books of account as required by law 

have been kept by the Company so far as appears from our 

examination of those books. 

c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Proit and Loss and 

the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in 

agreement with the books of account.
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d) In our opinion, the aforesaid inancial statements comply 

with the Accounting Standards speciied under Section 133 

of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) 

Rules, 2014.

e) On the basis of written representations received from the 

directors as on 31 March, 2015, taken on record by the 

Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualiied as 

on 31 March, 2015, from being appointed as a director in 

terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

f) With respect to the other matters to be included in 

the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the 

Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,2014, in our opinion 

and to the best of our information and according to the 

explanations given to us :

  i. The Company is subject to Legal proceedings and 

claims, which has arisen in the ordinary course of 

business. The Company’s management does not 

reasonably expect that these legal actions, when 

ultimately concluded and determined, will have a 

material and adverse effect on the company’s results 

of operations or inancial condition. (Refer Note No-

42)

  ii. The Company has made provision, as required under 

the applicable law or accounting standards, for material 

foreseeable losses, if any, and as required on long term 

contracts including derivative contracts; 

  iii The Company was not required to transfer any amount 

to the Investor Education and Protection Fund during 

the year.

FOR MOHIT PAREKH & CO.

Chartered Accountants

Firm Reg. No. 0002067N

Mohit Parekh

Place: Delhi Proprietor

Dated: May 27, 2015 Membership No. 081069
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Annexure to Independent Auditor’s Report 
(Referred to in point 1 under the heading “Report on Other Legal & Regulatory Requirements” of our report of even date)

1. In respect of its Fixed Assets:

a. The Company has maintained proper records showing full 

particulars including quantitative details and situation of 

ixed assets on the basis of available information.

b. As explained to us, the Fixed Assets have been physically 

veriied by the management in a phased periodical manner, 

which in our opinion is reasonable, having regard to the 

size of the Company and nature of its assets. No material 

discrepancies were noticed on such physical veriication.

2. In respect of its Inventories:

a. As explained to us, the inventories have been physically 

veriied by the management at regular intervals during 

the year and in our opinion the frequency of veriication is 

reasonable. 

b. In our opinion and according to the information and 

explanations given to us, the procedures of physical 

veriication of inventories followed by the management 

are reasonable and adequate in relation to the size of the 

Company and the nature of its business.

c. The Company has maintained proper records of inventories. 

As explained to us, there was no material discrepancies 

noticed on physical veriication of inventory as compared 

to the book records.

3. The Company has not granted any loans secured or unsecured 

to the Companies, Firm (s) or other parties covered in the  

register  maintained  u/s 189 of  the Companies Act, 2013. 

Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(iii) of the Companies 

(Auditor’s Report) Order, 2015 (as amended) (the order) is not 

applicable to the company and hence not commented upon. 

4. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations 

given to us, there are adequate internal control procedures 

commensurate with the size of the Company and the nature 

of its business for the purchase of inventory, ixed assets and 

also for the sale of goods and services. During the course of our 

audit, we have not noticed any continuing failure to correct major 

weakness in such internal control system of the company.

5. According to the information and explanations given to us, the 

Company has not accepted any deposits from its members or 

from the public during the year under audit within the meaning 

of section 73 to section 76 or any other relevant provisions 

of the Companies Act, 2013 & the rules framed thereunder. 

Therefore the provisions of clause (v) of paragraph 3 of the 

Order are not applicable to the Company.

6. We have broadly reviewed the cost records maintained by 

the Company pursuant to the companies (Cost Accounting 

Records) Rules, 2011 prescribed by the Central Government 

under section 148(1) of the Companies Act and are of the 

opinion that prima facie the prescribed cost records have been 

maintained. We have, however, not made a detailed examination 

of the cost records with a view to determine whether they are 

accurate or complete.

7. In respect of Statutory Dues:

a. According to the records of the Company apart from 

certain instances of delay in depositing the undisputed 

statutory dues, the company has been regular in  depositing 

undisputed statutory dues including Provident Fund, 

Employees State Insurance, Income Tax, Sales Tax, Wealth 

Tax, Service Tax, Custom Duty, Excise Duty, Cess and other 

statutory dues with the appropriate authorities during the 

year. According to the information and explanations given 

to us, no undisputed   amounts payable in respect of the 

aforesaid dues were outstanding as at March 31, 2015 for a 

period of more than six months from the date of becoming 

payable.

b. According to the records of the Company, the disputed 

statutory dues aggregating to H68032008/- that have not 

been deposited on account of disputed matter pending 

before Appropriate Authorities are as under:
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c. The amount was not required to be transferred to Investor 

Education & Protection Fund during the year and as such 

the clause is not applicable to the company during the year 

under consideration.

8. The Company does not have accumulated losses at the end 

of the inancial year and has not incurred any cash loss during 

the inancial year covered by our audit or in the immediately 

preceding inancial year.

9. Based on our audit procedures and according to the information 

and explanation given to us, we are of the opinion that the 

Company has not defaulted in repayment of dues to inancial 

institutions and banks.

10. According to the information and explanations given to us, the 

Company has not given any guarantees for loans taken by others 

from banks or inancial institutions.

11. To the best of our knowledge and belief and according to the 

information and explanations given to us, the term loans availed 

by the company were prima facie applied for the purposes for 

which they were raised.

12. During the course of our examination of the books & records of 

company, carried out in accordance with the generally accepted 

auditing practices in India, and according to the information 

and explanations given to us, we have neither come across any 

instance of material fraud on or by the company, noticed or 

reported during the year nor we have been informed of any 

such case by the management.

FOR MOHIT PAREKH & CO.

Chartered Accountants

Firm Reg. No. 0002067N

Mohit Parekh

Place: Delhi Proprietor

Dated: May 27, 2015 Membership No. 081069

S.No. Name of the 

Statute

Nature of Dues Period to which it 

relates

Forum where Dispute is Pending Amount (In 

Lacs)

1. Central Excise 

Act,1944

Excise Duty Sep’04 to Aug’07 Appellate Tribunal-New Delhi 186.11

2 VAT Act Penalty 2010-11 Appellate Authority, VAT, West Bengal 5.70

3. VAT Act Central Sales Tax 2009-10 VAT Tribunal,  Jammu 14.42

4. VAT Act VAT 2010-11 Appellate Authority, VAT, West Bengal 12.22

5. VAT Act Central Sales Tax 2010-11 Appellate Authority, VAT, West Bengal 2.78

6. VAT Act Central sales tax 2012-13 Assisstant Commissioner, VAT, Indore 1.52

7. VAT Act VAT 2014-15 Deputy Commissioner (Appeals), 

Jaipur

21.13

8. VAT Act Central Sales Tax 2010-11 Commissioner Appeal, Assessing 

Authority, Commercial Tax Circle G, 

Jammu

415.77
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Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2015
 Amount (In Lacs)

Particulars Notes   As at

March 31, 2015 

  As at

March 31, 2014 

A EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Shareholder’s Funds

(a) Share Capital 3  1,268.30  1,268.30 

(b) Reserves & Surplus 4  27,872.85  23,387.29 

 29,141.15  24,655.59 

Non-current liabilities

(a) Long-term borrowings 5  5,366.24  3,020.70 

(b) Deferred tax liabilities (net)  1,556.92  1,326.66 

(c) Other long-term liabilities 6  393.51  428.93 

(d) Long-term provisions 7  60.29  32.64 

 7,376.96  4,808.93 

Current liabilities

(a) Short-term borrowings 8  24,094.53  21,242.90 

(b) Trade payables 9  20,982.75  20,360.41 

(c) Other current liabilities 10  7,809.75  6,452.51 

(d) Short-term provisions 11  2,671.25  1,617.01 

 55,558.28  49,672.83 

TOTAL  92,076.39  79,137.35 

B ASSETS

Non-current assets

(a) Fixed assets 12

(i) Tangible assets  20,186.10  16,703.19 

(ii) Intangible assets  284.74  352.36 

(iii) Capital work-in-progress  3,764.69  5,371.90 

 24,235.53  22,427.45 

(b) Non-Current Investments 13  1,108.54  1,108.54 

(c) Long-term loans and advances 14  592.42  474.47 

(d) Other non-current assets 15  218.56  627.21 

 26,155.05  24,637.67 

Current assets

(a) Inventories 16  39,140.37  31,165.97 

(b) Trade receivables 17  16,680.81  12,787.43 

(c) Cash and cash equivalents 18  655.73  903.37 

(d) Short-term loans and advances 19  5,759.35  6,626.58 

(e) Other current assets 20  3,685.08  3,016.33 

 65,921.34  54,499.68 

TOTAL  92,076.39  79,137.35 

Summary of Signiicant Accounting Policies  1 to 2  -    -   

Notes On Financial Statements  3 to 51 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the inancial statements.

As per our separate report of even date annexed herewith

For MOHIT PAREKH & CO. For and on Behalf of the Board          

Chartered Accountants Hari Chand Aggarwal Rajesh Aggarwal  Nikunj Aggarwal

Firm Reg. No. 0002067N Chairman Managing Director Whole Time Director

DIN 00577015 DIN 00576872 DIN 06569091

Mohit A Parekh Sandeep Aggarwal Pankaj  Gupta

Proprietor Chief Financial Of�cer Company Secretary 

M.No.-  081069

Place : Delhi                                                           

Date: May 27, 2015
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Statement of Proit & Loss Account for the year ended on March 31, 2015
 Amount (In Lacs)

Notes For the year ended

March 31, 2015 

For the year ended

March 31, 2014 

CONTINUING OPERATIONS

INCOME

Revenue from Operations (Gross) 21  103,133.46  92,253.55 

Less: Excise Duty  6,714.31  5,845.38 

Revenue from operations (net)  96,419.15  86,408.17 

Other Income 22  43.53  45.37 

Total revenue (I)  96,462.68  86,453.54 

EXPENSES

Cost of raw material and components consumed 23  67,963.68  55,028.87 

Purchase of Traded Goods 24  4,962.28  10,184.18 

(Increase)/ decrease in inventories of inished goods,

work-in-progress and traded goods 25  (8,097.15)  (5,062.02)

Employee Beneits Expense 26  3,444.41  2,930.40 

Depreciation and amortization Expense 27  1,416.82  665.55 

Finance Costs 28  3,315.69  2,691.17 

Other expenses 29  17,040.10  15,150.24 

Total (II)  90,045.83  81,588.39 

Proit/(loss) before tax (I-II)  6,416.85  4,865.15 

Tax Expenses

Current Tax  902.21  1,062.34 

Mat Credit Entitlement  (200.00)  (500.00)

Deferred Tax  230.26  308.55 

Total Tax Expenses  932.47  870.89 

Proit/(loss) for the year  5,484.38  3,994.26 

Earnings per equity share [nominal value of share H10]

(31 March 2014: H10)

Basic &  Diluted  43.24  31.49 

Summary of Signiicant Accounting Policies  1 to 2

Notes On Financial Statements  3 to 51 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the inancial statements.

As per our separate report of even date annexed herewith

For MOHIT PAREKH & CO. For and on Behalf of the Board          

Chartered Accountants Hari Chand Aggarwal Rajesh Aggarwal  Nikunj Aggarwal

Firm Reg. No. 0002067N Chairman Managing Director Whole Time Director

DIN 00577015 DIN 00576872 DIN 06569091

Mohit A Parekh Sandeep Aggarwal Pankaj  Gupta

Proprietor Chief Financial Of�cer Company Secretary 

M.No.-  081069

Place : Delhi                                                           

Date: May 27, 2015
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Cash Flow Statement for the year ended on March 31, 2015
 Amount (In Lacs)

For the year ended 

March 31, 2015 

For the year ended 

March 31, 2014 

(A) Cash Flow From Operating Activities

 Net Proit Before Tax  6,416.85  4,865.15 

 Adjustment for

 - Depreciation  1,416.82  665.55 

 - (Proit)/ Loss on Sale of Assets  22.90  15.74 

 - Preliminary Expenses Written Off  -    1.97 

 - Interest Income  (35.71)  (21.47)

 - Interest Expenses  2,402.06  1,586.80 

 Operating Proit Before Working Capital Changes  10,222.92  7,113.74

 Adjustments for

 - (Increase)/Decrease in Trade Receivable  (3,893.38)  (1,136.84)

 - (Increase)/Decrease in Inventories  (7,974.40)  (8,630.93)

 - (Increase)/Decrease in Other Current Assets  (640.05)  (1,243.41)

 - (Increase)/Decrease in Short Term Loans & Advances  1,779.00  36.42 

 - (Increase)/Decrease in Long Term Loans & Advances  (117.96)  85.77 

 - Increase/(Decrease) in Trade Payable  622.34  7,292.77 

 - Increase/(Decrease) in Long Term Liabilities  (35.42)  (54.60)

 - Increase/(Decrease) in Other Current Liabilities  194.26  1,123.04 

 - Increase/(Decrease) in Provision for Expenses  72.47  17.75

 229.78  4,603.71

 Less: Income Tax/ Wealth Tax  (713.87)  (837.80) 

 Less: Preliminary Expenses Incurred  (89.33) - 

 Net Cash From Operating Activities (A)  (573.42)  3,765.91 

(B) Cash Flow From Investing Activities  -   

 - Addition to Fixed Assets  (3,347.57)  (4,618.93)

 - Sale of Fixed Assets  33.98  31.85 

 - Interest Income  35.71  21.47 

 - (Addition) Disposal/Sales of Investments  -    (1,108.54)

 Net Cash From Investing Activities (B)  (3,277.88)  (5,674.15)
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Cash Flow Statement for the year ended on March 31, 2015
 Amount (In Lacs)

For the year ended 

March 31, 2015 

For the year ended 

March 31, 2014 

(C) Cash Flow From Financing Activities

 - Proceeds from borrowing/loans  6,450.87  4,374.45 

 - Interest paid  (2,402.06)  (1,586.80)

 - Dividend Paid  (380.49)  (380.49)

 - Distribution Tax Paid  (64.66)  (64.66)

Net Cash From Finance Activities (c )  3,603.66  2,342.50 

Net Cash Flow during the year (A+B+C)  (247.64)  434.26 

Cash and Cash equivalents Opening Balance  903.37  469.11 

Cash and Cash equivalents Closing Balance  655.73  903.37 

Notes:-   

1.  The Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the “Indirect method” as set out in the accounting standard 3 “ Cash Flow Statement” 

issued by The Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.   

2.  Previous year’s igures have been re-classiied to conirm with current year’s presentation, wherever considered necessary.

As per our separate report of even date annexed herewith

For MOHIT PAREKH & CO.  For and on Behalf of the Board             

Chartered Accountants Hari Chand Aggarwal Rajesh Aggarwal   Nikunj Aggarwal

Firm Reg. No. 0002067N Chairman Managing Director Whole Time Director

 DIN 00577015 DIN 00576872 DIN 06569091

Mohit A Parekh Sandeep Aggarwal Pankaj  Gupta

Proprietor Chief Financial Oficer Company Secretary 

M.No.-  081069

Place : Delhi                                                           

Date: May 27, 2015

81INSECTICIDES (INDIA) LIMITED | Annual Report 2014-15



Notes on Financial Statements for the year ended on March 31, 2015

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION

Insecticides (India) Limited (The Company) is a public company domiciled in India and incorporated under the provisions of the Companies 

Act, 1956. The company has its primary listings on the BSE Limited and National Stock Exchange in India. The Company is engaged in 

the manufacturing activities of Agro Chemicals, Pesticides and Technical Products for agriculture purposes. The Company caters to both 

domestic and international markets. 

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A. ACCOUNTING CONVENTION

These inancial statements have been prepared to comply with Generally accepted Accounting Principles in India (Indian GAAP), including 

the Accounting Standards notiied under the relevant provisions of the Companies Act,2013.

The Financial statements are prepared on accrual basis under the historical cost convention. Accounting Policies not speciically referred 

to otherwise, are consistent and in consonance with generally accepted Accounting Principles. 

B. USE OF ESTIMATES

The preparation of inancial statements in conformity with Indian GAAP requires judgments, estimates and assumptions to be made that 

affect the reported amount of Assets & Liabilities, disclosure of Contingent Liabilities on the date of Financial Statements and the reported 

amount of Expenses and Income during the reporting period. Difference between the estimates and actual results are recognized in the 

period in which the results are known /materialized. 

C. TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS (OWNED)

Fixed Assets are stated at cost of acquisition net of recoverable taxes, trade discounts and rebates less accumulated depreciation and 

impairment loss, if any. The cost of tangible assets comprises its purchase price, borrowing cost and any cost directly attributable to bringing 

the asset to its working condition for its intended use, net charges on foreign exchange contracts and adjustments arising from exchange 

rate variations attributable to the ixed assets.

Subsequent expenditures related to an item of tangible asset are added to its book value only if they increase the future beneits from 

existing asset beyond its previously assessed standard of performance.

Projects under which assets are not ready for their intended use are shown as Capital Work in Progress. 

D. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 

Intangible Assets are stated at cost of acquisition net of recoverable taxes less accumulated amortization/depletion and impairment loss, if 

any. The cost comprises its purchase price, borrowing cost and any cost directly attributable to bringing the asset to its working condition 

for its intended use and net charges on foreign exchange contracts and adjustments arising from exchange rate variations attributable to 

the intangible assets. 

E. LEASED ASSETS 

The Company do not have any leased assets. 

F. DEPRECIATION,  AMORTISATION & DEPLETION

Depreciation on Fixed Assets has been provided on Straight Line Method based on useful life of the assets as prescribed in Schedule II of 

the Companies Act, 2013 except in respect of following assets, where useful life is different than those prescribed in Schedule II are used;

Particulars Depreciation

Ofice/Godown Building (Useful Life : 60 years) Over a period of 30 years as technically assessed

Plant & Machinery (Useful Life : 15 years) Over a period of 20 years as technically assessed

Depreciation on assets acquired/disposed off during the year has been provided on pro-rata basis with reference to the date of use/

addition/disposal. 

Intangible Assets are amortized on Straight Line Method over their useful life.

Impact of change in Depreciation due to change in Companies Act, 2013

According to the new provisions of Schedule II of Companies Act, 2013 the depreciation on assets comes out to be 1416.82 Lacs as 

against the depreciation of 878.22 Lacs as per Companies Act,1956.

The proits for the period were decreased by 538.60 Lacs due to changes adopted pursuant to the Schedule II of Companies Act, 2013. 
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Notes on Financial Statements for the year ended on March 31, 2015

G. INVESTMENTS

Current investments, if any, are stated at lower of cost or fair value determined on individual investment basis. Non Current investments 

are stated at cost. Provision for diminution in the value of non current investments is made only if such decline is other than temporary.

H. PURCHASES

Purchases are net of rebate/special discounts, excise duty, goods returned etc.

I. REVENUE RECOGNITION

Revenue is recognized only when it can be reliably measured and it is reasonable to expect ultimate collection. 

Sales of goods: Sale are recognized when substantial risks and rewards of ownership in the goods transferred to the buyer, usually on 

delivery of the goods. Turnover includes sales of goods & excise duty (net of sales returns, sales tax/ value added tax) 

Other Income: Interest income is recognized on time proportion basis taking in to account the amount outstanding and the interest rate 

applicable. 

Dividend Income is recognized when the right to receive payment is established.

Export Incentives: Export incentives are recognized in the statement of Proit & Loss when the right to receive incentives is established in 

respect of exports made and when there is no signiicant uncertainty regarding the collection of the relevant export proceeds.

J. FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSACTIONS

a) Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are recorded at the exchange rate prevailing on the date of the transaction or that 

approximates the actual rate at the date of the transaction.

b) Monetary items denominated in foreign currency at the year end are restated at the year end rate. In case of items which are covered 

by forward exchange contracts, the difference between the year end rate and rate on the date of contract is recognized as exchange 

rate difference and the premium paid on forward contracts is recognized over the life of the contract.

c) Non monetary foreign currency items are carried at cost.

d) Any Gain or Loss on account of exchange difference either on settlement or on translation is recognized in the Statement of Proit 

& Loss except in case they relate to acquisition of ixed assets, they are adjusted to the carrying cost of such assets. 

K. RETIREMENT BENEFITS 

a) Contribution to provident fund and family pension fund are accounted for on accrual basis. 

b) The company provides for Leave Encashment Beneits. The expenses towards leave encashment are recognized in the Statement of 

Proit & Loss on the basis of an actuarial valuation based on projected unit credit method carried out at the year-end.

c) The Company provides for gratuity, a deined beneit retirement plan (‘the Gratuity Plan’) covering eligible employees. The Company 

has Gratuity Fund covered by the scheme with LIC of India. The expenses towards gratuity are recognized in the Statement of Proit 

& Loss on the basis of an actuarial valuation based on projected unit credit method carried out at the year-end. 

L. IMPAIRMENT OF ASSETS 

An asset is treated as impaired, when carrying cost of assets exceeds its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is charged to the 

Statement of Proit & Loss in the year in which an asset is identiied as impaired. The impairment loss recognized in prior accounting 

period(s), if any, is reversed if there has been a change in the estimate of the recoverable amount. 

M. EXCISE DUTY

Excise duty is accounted on the basis of both, payments made in respect of goods cleared and also provision made for goods lying in 

branches/factories. 

N. INVENTORIES

The items of inventories are measured at cost after providing for obsolescence, if any. Cost of inventories comprise of cost of purchase, 

cost of conversion and appropriate portion of variable and ixed proportion overheads and such other costs incurred in bringing them 

to their respective present location and condition including excise duty wherever applicable. Fixed production overheads are based on 

normal capacity of production facilities. Cost of raw material, process chemicals, stores and spares packing materials, trading and other 

products are determined on weighted average basis. 
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O. BORROWING COSTS

Borrowing costs that are attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset are capitalized as part of cost of 

such asset till such time as the asset is ready for its intended use. A qualifying asset is an asset that requires a substantial period of time to 

get ready for its intended use. 

All other borrowing costs are recognized as expense in the statement of proit & loss in the period in which they are incurred.

P. PROPOSED DIVIDEND

Dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is provided for in the books of account and is pending for approval at the Annual General 

Meeting.

Q. RESEARCH & DEVELOPMENT

The expenditure on Research & Development for technical plants at Dahej & Chopanki is recognized as an expense in the Statement 

of Proit & Loss on an accrual basis. The ixed assets acquired for carrying out the research & development activities are capitalized and 

depreciation thereon is recognized as an expense in the Statement of Proit & Loss.

R. PROVISION FOR CURRENT & DEFERRED TAX

Tax expense comprises of current tax and deferred tax. Current tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid to the tax authorities, 

using the applicable tax rates. Deferred income tax relect the current period timing differences between taxable income and accounting 

income for the period and reversal of timing difference of earlier years/period. Deferred tax assets are recognized only to the extent that 

there is a reasonable certainty that suficient future income will be available except that deferred tax assets, in case there are unabsorbed 

depreciation or losses, are recognized if there is virtual certainty that suficient future taxable income will be available to realize the same.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using the tax rates and tax law that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the 

Balance Sheet date.

S. FINANCIAL DERIVATIVES HEDGING TRANSACTIONS

In respect of derivatives contracts, premium paid, gain/loss on settlement and losses on restatement are recognized in the Statement of 

Proit & Loss except in case they relates to the acquisition or construction of ixed assets, they are adjusted to the carrying cost of such 

assets.

T. Claims by or against the Company are accounted when acknowledged/ accepted/ settled/ received.

U. Interest on Late Payments by the customers & to the suppliers and differential interest to the bankers are accounted for on acceptance 

basis.

V. The bonus is accounted for on accrual basis.

W. The Company has already initiated the process and entitled for subsidy on account of certain revenue and capital nature of expenditures 

incurred at Samba & Udhampur Units in earlier years. The company’s policy is to account for subsidy on cash/acceptance basis as under: 

Subsidy of capital nature and related to speciic Fixed Asset shall be deducted from the gross value of assets.

Subsidy related to revenue shall be recognized in the Statement of Proit & Loss to match them with related costs.

X. PROVISIONS, CONTINGENT LIABILITIES, CONTINGENT ASSETS

Provision is recognised in the accounts when there is a present obligation as a result of past event(s) and it is probable that an outlow of 

resources will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made. Provisions are not discounted to their present value 

and are determined based on the best estimate required to settle the obligation at the reporting date. These estimates are reviewed at 

each reporting date and adjusted to relect the current best estimates.

Contingent Liabilities are not recognized but are disclosed in the notes. 

Contingent Assets are neither recognized nor disclosed in the inancial statements.

Y. MAT CREDIT ENTITLEMENTS

The Company is liable to pay income tax u/s 115JA & 115JB of the Income Tax Act during the year. In terms of the Guidance Note issued 

by the Council of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India “on accounting for credit available in respect to MAT under the Income 

Tax act”, the MAT Credit available is treated as an “Asset” if the MAT credit has expected future economic beneits in the form of its 

adjustment against the discharge of the normal tax liability if the same arises during the speciied period and accordingly the necessary 

provisions has been made by the company during the year. 

Notes on Financial Statements for the year ended on March 31, 2015
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Notes on Financial Statements for the year ended on March 31, 2015

3. SHARE CAPITAL

 (In Lacs)

  As at

March 31, 2015 

  As at

March 31, 2014 

Authorised Shares

25000000 (Previous Year 15000000) Equity Shares of H10/- Each  2,500.00  1,500.00 

Issued, Subscribed & fully Paid-up Shares

12682966 (Previous Year 12682966)  Equity Shares of H10/- Each  1,268.30  1,268.30 

Total issued, subscribed and fully paid-up share capital  1,268.30  1,268.30 

3(a) Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period

Equity shares   As at March 31, 2015   As at March 31, 2014 

 Number of 

shares 

  (In Lacs)  Number of 

shares 

  (In Lacs) 

At the beginning of the period 12682966  1,268.30 12682966  1,268.30 

Issued during the period  -    -    -    -   

Outstanding at the end of the period 12682966  1,268.30 12682966  1,268.30 

3(c) The details of Shareholders holding more than 5% shares:

Name of the Shareholder   As at March 31, 2015   As at March 31, 2014 

 Number of 

Shares 

 % Held  Number of 

Shares 

 % Held 

Rajesh Aggarwal 3528600  27.82 3528600  27.82 

Pushpa Aggarwal 1434600  11.31 1434600  11.31 

Rajesh Aggarwal (HUF) 1302000  10.27 1302000  10.27 

Hari Chand Aggarwal (HUF) 996000  7.85 996000  7.85 

Nikunj Aggarwal 750000  5.91 750000  5.91 

Life Insurance Corporation of India 675000  5.32 675000  5.32 

Note:- The company has declared Bonus Shares in the ratio of 2:1 during the year. However, the same has been issued in the month of 

May 15, i.e. in succeeding inancial year.

3(b) Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to shares :

The company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of H10 per share. Each shareholder  is eligible for one vote per share 

held. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General 

Meeting. In the event of liquidation of the company, the equity shareholders are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the company 

after distribution of all preferential amount, in proportion to their shareholding.

During the  inancial year ended on 31st, March 2015, the amount of per share dividend recognized as distributions to equity shareholders 

was H2.50 (Previous Year H3.00) including Bonus Shares.
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Notes on Financial Statements for the year ended on March 31, 2015

4. RESERVES AND SURPLUS

 (In Lacs)

  As at

March 31, 2015 

  As at

March 31, 2014 

(a) Securities premium account  3,155.27  3,518.15 

(b) General Reserve

Opening balance  2,142.65  1,656.13 

Add: Transferred from surplus in Statement of P&L  641.69  486.52 

Less: Retained Earnings (Fixed Assets)  (65.79)  -   

Closing balance  2,718.55  2,142.65 

(c) Surplus / (Deicit) in Statement of Proit and Loss 

Opening balance  18,114.25  15,051.66 

Add: Proit / (Loss) for the year  5,484.38  3,994.26 

Less: Appropriations

Proposed inal equity dividend {amount per share H2.50 (31 March 2014: H3.00)}  (475.61)  (380.49)

Tax on proposed equity dividend  (96.82)  (64.66)

Transfer to general reserve  (641.69)  (486.52)

Adjustment of pre-operative exp.  (60.63)  -   

Closing balance  22,323.88  18,114.25 

(d) Foreign Currency Translation Reserve  (324.85)  (387.76)

Total Reserves and Surplus  27,872.85  23,387.29 

5. LONG-TERM BORROWINGS

 (In Lacs)

Non-current portion Current maturities

  As at

March 31, 2015 

  As at

March 31, 2014 

  As at

March 31, 2015 

  As at

March 31, 2014 

(a) Term loans

Indian rupee loan from banks - Vehicle Loans  63.39  62.15  102.08  102.60 

(secured)

Indian rupee loan from banks - Term Loan  3,779.41  -    871.54  -   

(secured)

Foreign currency loan from banks  1,523.44  2,958.55  1,571.70  1,434.64 

(secured)

(b) Loans & Advances (Unsecured)

- From Related Parties  -    -    -    -   

- From Others  -    -    154.90  -   

Total Amount  5,366.24  3,020.70  2,700.22  1,537.24 

5(a) Nature of Security and terms of repayment for secured borrowing : 

(i) Term Loans from banks for vehicles have been secured by hypothecation of vehicles.Further, vehicles loans have been guaranteed by 

the personal guarantee of the directors- Mr. Hari Chand Aggarwal and Mr. Rajesh Aggarwal. These loans are repayable in 36 monthly 

installments from the date of the loans along with interest rates  ranging  between  10.50% to 12.50% per annum. 

(ii) The Foreign Currency outstanding loan amounting to  706.25 Lacs ( Previous Year -1128.37 Lacs) has been  secured by the irst 

charge over Plant and  Machineries situated at CH-21, GIDC Industrial Estate, Dahej Plant ( Gujarat).  Further, the loan has been 

guaranteed by the personal guarantee of the directors- Mr. Hari Chand Aggarwal and Mr. Rajesh Aggarwal. The outstanding loan is 

repayable in 6 quarterly  instalments.  The  interest is to be paid on quarterly basis at Libor plus 2.5%. Further, the company has 

entered into the derivative contract for hedging of the currency swaps  and interest rate swaps.
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(iii) The Foreign Currency outstanding loan amounting to  1367.57 Lacs (Previous Year -2059.75 Lacs) has been secured by the exclusive 

irst charge over assets being inanced including Land & Building and Plant & Machineries situated at CH-21, GIDC Industrial Estate, 

Dahej Plant (Gujrat). Further , the loan has  been guaranteed by the personal guarantee of the directors- Mr. Hari Chand Aggarwal 

and Mr. Rajesh Aggarwal. The outstanding loan is repayable in 7 quarterly instalments . The  interest is to be paid on quarterly basis at 

Libor plus 3.5%. Further, the company has entered into the derivative contract for hedging of interest rate swaps & 36% of currency 

swaps.

(iv)  The Foreign Currency outstanding loan amounting to 1021.31 Lacs (Previous Year -1205.08 Lacs) has been secured by the exclusive 

irst charge over assets being inanced including Land & Building and Plant & Machineries situated at CH-21, GIDC Industrial Estate, 

Dahej Plant (Gujrat). Further , the loan has  been guaranteed by the personal guarantee of the directors- Mr. Hari Chand Aggarwal 

and Mr. Rajesh Aggarwal. The outstanding loan is repayable in 13 quarterly instalments . The  interest is to be paid on quarterly basis 

at Libor plus 3.00%. Further, the company has entered into the derivative contract for hedging of the currency swaps and interest rate 

swaps. 

(v) The Indian Rupees Term Loans outstanding amounts to 4650.95 Lacs (1750 Lacs + 2900.95 Lacs) (Previous Year -Nil) have been 

secured by the exclusive irst charge over assets being inanced including Land & Building and Plant & Machineries situated at CH-21, 

GIDC Industrial Estate, Dahej Plant (Gujrat). Further , the loan has  been guaranteed by the personal guarantee of the directors- Mr. 

Hari Chand Aggarwal and Mr. Rajesh Aggarwal. These  outstanding loans are repayable quarterly in 10 & 17 installments alongwith 

interest @ 12.50% & @ 11.95% respectively.

5. LONG-TERM BORROWINGS (contd.)

6. OTHER LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

 (In Lacs)

  As at

March 31, 2015 

  As at

March 31, 2014 

Trade / security deposits received from Customers  318.45  279.07 

National Research Development Corporation (TDDP)  75.06  96.73 

Due To GIDC, Gujarat  -    53.13 

Total Amount  393.51  428.93 

7. LONG TERM PROVISIONS

 (In Lacs)

  As at

March 31, 2015 

  As at

March 31, 2014 

(a) Provision for employee beneits: 

(i) Provision for gratuity  21.42  -   

(ii) Provision for Leave Encashment  24.19  -   

(b) Provision for Foreign Exchage Loss (M to M)  14.68  32.64 

Total Amount  60.29  32.64 

8. SHORT-TERM BORROWINGS

 (In Lacs)

  As at

March 31, 2015 

  As at

March 31, 2014 

(a) Loans repayable on demand

From banks (Secured)  13,446.17  10,832.50 

(b) Cash credit from banks (Secured)  9,842.00  8,765.16 

(c) Buyers Credit Loans (Secured)  806.36  1,645.24 

Total Amount  24,094.53  21,242.90 

Working Capital Loans (Demand Loan, Cash Credit & Buyers Credits)  from  banks  are  secured  by  irst  pari  passu   charge   over present 

and future stock & book debts and moveable  ixed  assets  of  the  company . These  loans   are  additionally secured by equitable  mortgage  

on  pari  passu basis  over   Lands  &  Buildings of the company and residential property of the director at Pitampura Delhi and  negative  lien 

on company’s Samba Unit (J&K) Udhampur Unit (J&K) and ofice at Azad Pur (Delhi). Further,  these  loans  have  been  guaranteed  by  the  

personal  guarantee  of  the  directors -Mr. Hari Chand Aggarwal and Mr. Rajesh Aggarwal. Further, the company has entered into the derivative 

contract  for hedging of buyer’s credit amounting to 388.15 Lacs during the year (P.Y. -  621.94 Lacs).
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9. TRADE PAYABLES

 (In Lacs)

  As at

March 31, 2015 

  As at

March 31, 2014 

Trade payables (including acceptances)  20,982.75  20,360.41 

Total Amount  20,982.75  20,360.41 

10. OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

 (In Lacs)

  As at

March 31, 2015 

  As at

March 31, 2014 

Current maturities of long-term borrowings  2,700.22  1,537.24 

Unpaid dividend  3.93  3.51 

Other payables 

(i) Statutory remittances (Contributions to PF and ESIC, Prof. Tax, Withholding Taxes, 

Excise Duty, VAT, Service Tax, TDS etc.)

 282.61  246.09 

(ii) Advances from customers  2,703.28  2,663.40 

(iii) Cheques sent for Collection  13.70  61.24 

(iv) Debtors having Credit Balance  1,500.31  1,219.53 

(v) Creditors for Capital Expenditure  88.32  260.47 

(vi) Expenses Payable  517.38  461.03 

Total Amount  7,809.75  6,452.51 

11. SHORT-TERM PROVISIONS

 (In Lacs)

  As at

March 31, 2015 

  As at

March 31, 2014 

(a) Provision for employee beneits

(i) Provision for bonus  145.18  119.53 

(ii) Provision for Leave Encashment  1.21  -   

(b) Provision - Others

(i) Provision for Income Tax  1,950.00  1,050.00 

(ii) Provision for Wealth Tax  2.43  2.33 

(iii) Proposed equity dividend  475.61  380.49 

(iv) Provision for tax on proposed equity Dividend  96.82  64.66 

Total Amount  2,671.25  1,617.01 
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Notes on Financial Statements for the year ended on March 31, 2015

13. NON CURRENT INVESTMENTS

 (In Lacs)

  As at

March 31, 2015 

  As at

March 31, 2014 

(Long Term Investments)

In Shares

Unquoted Fully paid-up-At Cost

(In J.V.)

(a) OAT & IIL India Lab.(P) Ltd.  795.00  795.00 

(795000 Equity Shares  @ H100/- Each) (F.V-H100/-)

(P.Y - 795000 Equity Shares  @ H100/- Each)

Quoted Fully paid-up-At Cost (Listed at Tokyo Stock Exchange)

(In Parent Co. of J.V.)

(b) OAT Agrio Co.Ltd.  313.54  313.54 

[18200 Shares @ H1722.75 (F.V-H1/-)]

(P. Y. - 18200 Shares @ H1722.75 (F.V-H1/-))

(Market Value of 1 share - 2210 Yen as on March 31, 2015)

(P. Y. - Unlisted) 

Total Amount  1,108.54  1,108.54 

14. LOANS AND ADVANCES (NON CURRENT)

 (In Lacs)

  As at

March 31, 2015 

  As at

March 31, 2014 

Capital advances

Secured, considered good  -    -   

Unsecured, considered good  -    -   

Doubtful  -    -   

 -    -   

Security deposit

Secured, considered good  147.72  148.57 

Unsecured, considered good  -    -   

Doubtful  -    -   

 147.72  148.57 

Advances recoverable in cash or kind

Secured considered good  -    -   

Unsecured considered good  -    -   

Doubtful  -    -   

 -    -   

Other loans and advances

Advance income-tax  -    -   

Prepaid expenses  -    -   

Loans & Travel Advances  to employees  -    -   

Balance with Central Excise, VAT Authorities, etc.  444.70  325.90 

 444.70  325.90 

Total  592.42  474.47 

90



Notes on Financial Statements for the year ended on March 31, 2015

15. OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS

 (In Lacs)

  As at

March 31, 2015 

  As at

March 31, 2014 

Unamortised expenses

Share issue expenses etc.  -    362.88 

Unamortised (Gain)/Loss on Foreign Currency  218.56  264.33 

Total Amount  218.56  627.21 

17. TRADE RECEIVABLES

 (In Lacs)

  As at

March 31, 2015 

  As at

March 31, 2014 

Unsecured, considered good unless stated otherwise

Trade receivables outstanding for a period exceeding six months from the date they were 

due for payment

Secured, considered good  -    -   

Unsecured, considered good  432.89  556.21 

Doubtful  27.05  27.05 

 459.94  583.26 

Other Trade receivables

Secured, considered good  -    -   

Unsecured, considered good  16,220.87  12,204.17 

Doubtful  -    -   

 16,220.87  12,204.17 

Total Amount  16,680.81  12,787.43 

16. INVENTORIES

 (In Lacs)

  As at

March 31, 2015 

  As at

March 31, 2014 

(a) Raw materials  11,109.53  11,137.26 

(On Weighted Average Basis)

Goods-in-transit  566.79  812.12 

(b) Finished goods (Manufactured)  21,377.77  13,681.62 

(At Cost) 

Goods-in-transit  21.02  132.89 

(c) Stock-in-trade (Traded Goods)  1,619.67  2,167.83 

(On Weighted Average Basis)

(d) Packing materials  1,525.58  1,260.79 

(On Weighted Average Basis)

Goods-in-transit  12.29  33.80 

(e) Semi - Finished goods  2,848.20  1,899.03 

(On Weighted Average Basis)

(f) Stores, Spares Parts & Fuel  52.20  40.63 

(On Weighted Average Basis)

Goods-in-transit  7.32  -   

Total Amount  39,140.37  31,165.97 
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18. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

 (In Lacs)

  As at

March 31, 2015 

  As at

March 31, 2014 

(a) Cash on hand  22.89  26.63 

(b) Balances with banks

(i) In current accounts  396.92  447.17 

(ii) In earmarked accounts

  - Unpaid dividend accounts  3.93  3.51 

(iii) Fixed Deposits with Bank  231.99  426.06 

Including Interest Accrued of H13,11,853/-

Total Amount  655.73  903.37 

20. OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

 (In Lacs)

  As at

March 31, 2015 

  As at

March 31, 2014 

Excise Duty Involved in Stocks lying with the various branches  3,291.08  2,810.58 

Interest Recoverable  242.18  100.40 

Insurance Claim Recoverable  115.57  60.24 

Other Recoverable - Sales Tax Department  -    41.67 

Prelimimary Exp. not written off or adjusted  28.70  -   

Dividend Receivable  4.40  -   

Export Incentive Recoverable  3.15  3.44 

Total Amount  3,685.08  3,016.33 

19. LOANS AND ADVANCES (CURRENT)

 (In Lacs)

  As at

March 31, 2015 

  As at

March 31, 2014 

Capital advances

Secured, considered good  -    -   

Unsecured, considered good  180.09  215.32 

Doubtful  -    -   

 180.09  215.32 

Security deposit

Secured, considered good  -    -   

Unsecured, considered good  -    -   

Doubtful  -    -   

 -    -   

Advances recoverable in cash or kind

Secured considered good  914.59  1,936.86 

Unsecured considered good  -    -   

Doubtful  -    -   

 914.59  1,936.86 

Other loans and advances

Income-tax  1,515.40  803.64 

Prepaid expenses  82.28  137.18 

Loans & Travel Advances  to employees  19.95  19.45 

Balance with Central Excise, VAT Authorities, etc.  1,617.04  2,284.13 

MAT Credit Entitlement  1,430.00  1,230.00 

 4,664.67  4,474.40 

Total  5,759.35  6,626.58 
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21. REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS

 (In Lacs)

  For the year ended

March 31, 2015 

 For the year ended

March 31, 2014 

Sale of products

Finished goods  94,952.49  79,876.22 

Traded goods  8,180.97  12,376.94 

Sale of Scrap  -    0.39 

Revenue from operations (Gross)  103,133.46  92,253.55 

Less: Excise duty  6,714.31  5,845.38 

Revenue from operations (Net)  96,419.15  86,408.17 

22. OTHER INCOME

 (In Lacs)

  For the year ended

March 31, 2015 

 For the year ended

March 31, 2014 

Interest income on

Fixed deposits with Bank  30.91  17.32 

[Tax Deducted At Source H3,08,477/- (P.Y.- H1,70,950/-)]

Others  4.80  4.15 

Total  35.71  21.47 

Other non-operating income  7.82  23.90 

Total Other Income  43.53  45.37 

Details of products sold  (In Lacs)

  For the year ended

March 31, 2015 

 For the year ended

March 31, 2014 

Finished goods sold

Liquid  45,727.85  39,116.82 

Powder  16,134.81  12,273.75 

Granules  17,191.40  19,692.18 

Technicals  15,898.43  8,793.47 

Total  94,952.49  79,876.22 

Traded goods sold

Liquid  6,341.55  6,867.50 

Powder  255.56  1,250.32 

Granules  827.63  1,016.06 

Raw Materials & Packing Materials  756.23  3,243.06 

Total  8,180.97  12,376.94 

Grand Total  103,133.46  92,253.16 
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23. COST OF RAW MATERIAL AND COMPONENTS CONSUMED

 (In Lacs)

  For the year ended

March 31, 2015 

 For the year ended

March 31, 2014 

Raw Material

Inventory at the beginning of the year  11,949.39  8,396.03 

Add: Purchases  61,227.04  52,136.46 

 73,176.43  60,532.49 

Less: inventory at the end of the year  11,676.32  11,949.39 

Cost of raw material consumed  61,500.11  48,583.10 

Packing Material

Inventory at the beginning of the year  1,294.59  1,386.23 

Add: Purchases  6,706.85  6,354.13 

 8,001.44  7,740.36 

Less: inventory at the end of the year  1,537.87  1,294.59 

Cost of Packing material consumed  6,463.57  6,445.77 

Total Cost of raw material and components consumed  67,963.68  55,028.87 

24. DETAILS OF PURCHASE OFTRADED GOODS

 (In Lacs)

  For the year ended

March 31, 2015 

 For the year ended

March 31, 2014 

Liquid  3,690.39  5,314.33 

Powder  46.91  1,116.19 

Granules  526.46  583.33 

Cost of Other Goods  698.52  3,170.33 

Total  4,962.28  10,184.18 

25. (INCREASE)/DECREASE IN INVENTORIES

 (In Lacs)

  For the year ended

March 31, 2015 

 For the year ended

March 31, 2014 

A. (Increase)/ Decrease in Traded Goods

Closing Stocks  1,619.67  2,167.83 

Less: Opening Stocks  2,167.83  1,342.91 

(Increase)/Decrease in Closing Stock  548.16  (824.92)

B. (Increase)/Decrease in Finished Goods

Closing Stocks  21,377.77  13,681.62 

Less: Opening Stocks  13,681.62  9,789.56 

(Increase)/Decrease in Closing Stock  (7,696.15)  (3,892.06)

C. (Increase)/Decrease in Semi Finished Goods

Closing Stocks  2,848.19  1,899.03 

Less: Opening Stocks  1,899.03  1,553.99 

(Increase)/Decrease in Closing Stock  (949.16)  (345.04)

TOTAL (A+B+C)  (8,097.15)  (5,062.02)
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26. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE

 (In Lacs)

  For the year ended

March 31, 2015 

 For the year ended

March 31, 2014 

Salaries wages and bonus  3,072.84  2,661.64 

Contribution to provident and other funds  140.68  101.76 

Gratuity expense  87.58  41.03 

Staff welfare expenses  143.31  125.97 

Total  3,444.41  2,930.40 

27. DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION EXPENSE

 (In Lacs)

  For the year ended

March 31, 2015 

 For the year ended

March 31, 2014 

Depreciation of tangible assets  1,359.55  631.21 

Amortization of intangible assets  57.27  34.34 

Total  1,416.82  665.55 

28. FINANCE COSTS

 (In Lacs)

  For the year ended

March 31, 2015 

 For the year ended

March 31, 2014 

Interest

Interest on CC Limits & Buyer's Credit & Demand Loan  2,284.64  1,533.39 

Interest (Others)  42.32  33.07 

Interest on Term Loans  20.18  20.33 

Interest on Unsecured Loans  54.92  -   

Bank Charges  535.71  316.10 

Net (gain) / loss on foreign currency transactions and translation (considered as inance cost)  377.92  788.28 

Total  3,315.69  2,691.17 

25. (INCREASE)/DECREASE IN INVENTORIES (contd.)

Details of inventory  (In Lacs)

  For the year ended

March 31, 2015 

 For the year ended

March 31, 2014 

Traded goods

Liquid  1,442.44  1,903.75 

Powder  49.30  177.57 

Granules  127.93  86.51 

Total  1,619.67  2,167.83 

Finished goods

Liquid  11,592.27  8,056.64 

Powder  3,216.47  2,078.25 

Granules  3,464.86  2,925.35 

Technicals  3,104.17  621.38 

Total  21,377.77  13,681.62 
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29. OTHER EXPENSES

 (In Lacs)

  For the year ended

March 31, 2015 

 For the year ended

March 31, 2014 

Manufacturing Expenses :

Consumption of stores and spares  228.90  324.87 

Job Work Charges  11.28  -   

Power and fuel Expenses  1,409.74  1,225.58 

Freight Inward  170.42  210.03 

Conveyance Expenses  79.05  67.80 

Repairs and Maintenance (Machinery)  138.90  133.99 

Repairs and Maintenance (Buildings)  31.66  16.54 

Repairs and Maintenance (Others)  81.76  64.89 

Pollution Control Expenses  70.46  69.02 

Entry Tax /Toll Tax  61.94  61.54 

Laboratory Expenses  45.41  44.34 

 2,329.52  2,218.60 

Selling & Distribution Expenses :

Discounts & Rebates Allowed  7,190.10  6,324.31 

Freight Outward  2,344.24  2,201.84 

Business Promotion Expenses  1,718.84  1,601.64 

Performance Incentive  200.99  218.27 

Lekage/Demonstration/Testing / Tender Fees  26.87  27.33 

Advertisement & Publicity Expenses  309.46  150.73 

Royalty  222.18  217.52 

Commission  665.92  624.77 

Travelling and conveyance  758.11  629.34 

 13,436.71  11,995.75 

Administrative & General Expenses :

Rent (Including Lease Rental)  157.62  133.37 

Insurance  85.08  81.40 

Telephone Expenses  32.45  34.29 

Printing and Stationery  27.73  25.52 

Legal and Professional Fees  143.30  155.48 

Director Sitting Fees  9.72  6.91 

Payment to Auditors (Refer Note No. 34)  24.72  20.22 

Professional Tax  0.15  0.13 

Electricity & Water Charges  90.44  48.16 

Rates and taxes  10.65  11.68 

Repairs and Maintenance (Others)  8.38  3.34 

Conveyance Expenses  4.22  2.54 

Postage & Telgramme Expenses  11.04  9.50 

Filing Fees  12.51  0.32 

Licence Fees  0.74  0.55 

Ofice & Factory Maintenance Expenses  23.20  25.47 

Membership & Subscription  4.53  6.75 

Vehicle Running & Maintenance Expenses  33.87  31.43 
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29. OTHER EXPENSES

 (In Lacs)

  For the year ended

March 31, 2015 

 For the year ended

March 31, 2014 

Security Charges  73.80  60.19 

Donation  24.84  24.48 

TDS (Interest Paid)  0.62  0.07 

Scooter Running & Maintenance Expenses  2.50  2.56 

Fine & Penalties  11.11  3.21 

Computer Running & Maintenance Expenses  67.86  53.46 

Generator Repair & Maintenance Expenses  3.18  2.25 

Books & Periodicals  0.84  0.37 

Additional Sales Tax  8.36  4.38 

ISO Expenses  2.00  1.59 

Research & Development Expenses  308.65  101.17 

Preliminary Expenses Written off  -    1.97 

Petty balance Written off  (0.10)  1.36 

Loss on Sale of Fixed Assets (net)  22.90  15.73 

Miscellaneous Expenses  58.37  57.70 

Prior Period Items (net)  8.59  8.34 

 1,273.87  935.89 

Total  17,040.10  15,150.24 

Payment to Auditors

Audit Fees  13.49  13.48 

Tax Audit Fees                                                                         4.49  3.37 

In Other Capacity ( Taxation & Other Matters)                    6.74  3.37 

Total  24.72  20.22 

(contd.)

30. EARNING PER SHARE (EPS)

The Company reports basic & diluted earnings per equity share in accordance with Accounting Standard – 20 issued by The Institute of 

Chartered Accountants of India. The same is computed by dividing the net proit attributable to equity shareholders for the year, by the 

weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year. The earning per share is calculated as under:

Particular 2014-15 2013-14

Proit after Taxation (In Lacs) 5484.38 3994.26

Weighted Average Number of Equity Shares 12682966 12682966

Earning Per Share (Basic & Diluted) ‘43.24 H31.49

Face Value Per Share (H) H10 H10
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31. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 

A. Retirement Beneits 

(a) Retirement beneits in the form of Provident Fund / Family Pension Fund, which are deined contribution plans, are accounted for on 

accrual basis and charged to the Statement of Proit & Loss of the year.

(b) Retirement beneits in the form of Leave Encashment, which is deined beneit plan, is accounted for on the basis of an actuarial   

valuation   done by applying the Projected Unit Credit Method.

(c) Retirement beneits in the form of Gratuity, which is deine beneit plan, is determined and accounted for on the basis of an actuarial   

valuation   done by applying the Projected Unit Credit Method.

(d) The actuarial Gains / Losses arising during the year are recognized in the Statement of Proit & Loss of the year.

The following tables summarize the components of net beneit expense recognized in the Statement of Proit & Loss and the funded status 

and amounts recognized in the Balance Sheet for the Gratuity Plan:

Gratuity Liability

(In Lacs)

Particulars For the year ended 

March 31, 2015

For the year ended 

March 31, 2014

I. Assumptions :

Discount Rate 8.03% 8.25%

Rate of Return on Plan Assets 8.03% 8.70%

Salary Escalation 5.00% 5.00%

Attrition Rate 2.00% Age Related 2.00% Age Related

II. Change in the Present Value of Deined Beneit Obligation :

Liability at the beginning of the year 215.36 170.64

Interest Cost 20.05 14.08

Current Service Cost 29.54 27.17

Beneit Paid (0.39) (11.47)

Actuarial (gain)/loss on obligations 55.09 14.94

Liability at the end of the year 319.65 215.36

III. Change in the Fair Value of Plan Assets

Fair Value of Plan Assets at the beginning of the year 267.52 211.58

Expected Return on Plan Assets 23.27 18.41

Contributions by Employer 9.57 48.83

Beneit Paid (0.39) (11.47)

Actuarial gain/(loss) on Plan Assets (1.74) 0.17

Fair Value of Plan Assets at the end of the year 298.23 267.52

Total Actuarial Gain/(Loss) To be Recognized 56.84 (14.77)

IV. Actual Return on Plan Assets

Expected Return on Plan Assets 23.27 18.41

Actuarial gain/(loss) on Plan Assets (1.74) 0.17

Actual Return on Plan Assets 21.53 18.58

V. Amount Recognized in the Balance Sheet

Liability at the end of the year 319.65 215.36

Fair Value of Plan Assets at the end of the year 298.23 267.52

Difference (21.42) 52.16

Unrecognized Past Service Cost - -

Amount Recognized in the Balance Sheet (21.42) 52.16

98



Notes on Financial Statements for the year ended on March 31, 2015

32. SEGMENT REPORTING

The Company is engaged in the business of Formulation & Manufacture of Pesticides. Segment Revenue, Segment Expenses, Segment Assets 

& Segment Liabilities have been identiied to the segments on the basis of their relationship to the operating activities of the segment. The 

Revenue, Expenses, Assets & Liabilities which are not allocable to segments, have been included under “Unallocated Revenue, Expenses, 

Assets & Liabilities.

A. Primary Segment 

Based on the following guiding principles given in the Accounting Standard-17 “Segment Reporting’’ issued by The Institute of Chartered 

Accountants of India, the Company’s primary segments are Formulated Pesticides consisting of Pesticides, Herbicides, Fungicides & Plant 

Growth Regulators and Technical Pesticides, which are the basic active ingredients used for making formulations so that they can be used 

directly by the Farmers and/or Consumers: 

i) The nature of the products.

ii) The related risks and returns.

iii) The internal inancial reporting system.

Revenue and Expenses have been accounted for based on the basis of their relationship to the operating activities of the segments. 

Revenue and Expenses, which relates to the enterprise as a whole and are not allocable to the segments on a reasonable basis, have been 

included in under “Un-allocable Expenses & Revenue’’. 

Assets and Liabilities, which relates to the enterprise as a whole and are not allocable to the segments on a reasonable basis, have been 

included in under “Un-allocable Assets / Liabilities’’.

Gratuity Liability

(In Lacs)

Particulars For the year ended 

March 31, 2015

For the year ended 

March 31, 2014

VI. Expenses Recognized in the Statement of Proit & Loss

Current Service Cost 29.54 27.17

Interest Cost (3.23) 14.08

Expected Return on Plan Asset - (18.41)

Actuarial (Gain) or Loss 56.84 14.77

Expenses Recognized in the Statement of Proit & Loss 83.15 37.61

VII. Balance Sheet Reconciliation

Opening Net (Liability)/Asset 52.16 40.94

Expense Recognized in the statement of Proit & Loss (83.15) (37.61)

Employers Contribution 9.57 48.83

Net (Liability)/Asset Recognized in Balance Sheet (21.42) 52.16

VIII. Category of Assets

Insurer Managed Funds 298.23 267.52

Total 298.23 267.52

31. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (contd.)

Investment Details of Plan Assets:  100% with Life Insurance Corporation of India

B. Short Term Employees Beneits are recognized as an expense in the Statement Proit & Loss of year in which the related service is 

rendered.
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32. SEGMENT REPORTING (contd.)

Primary Segment Information:                                                           

(In Lacs)

Formulations Technical’s Un- Allocated Eliminations Total

14-15 13-14 14-15 13-14 14-15 13-14 14-15 13-14 14-15 13-14

Segment Revenue 

(Sales/Income) :

a) External Sales 80401 77172 16018 9236 - - -

-

96419 86408

b) Inter Segmental 

Sales

- 17181 12109 - - 17181 12109 - -

Sales 80401 77172 33199 21345 - - 17181 12109 96419 86408

Segment Result :

Operating Proit 

before Interest and 

Taxes

- - - - 8778.01 6430.48 - - 8778.01 6430.48

Add : Proit on Sale of 

Investment

- - - - - - - - - -

Add : Dividend 

Income

- - - - 5.19 - - - 5.19 -

Add : Interest income - - - - 35.71 21.47 - - 35.71 21.47

Proit Before Tax - - - - 6416.85 4865.15 - - 6416.85 4865.15

Current Tax (Net Of 

MAT Credit)

- - - - 700.00 550.00 - - 700.00 550.00

Deferred Tax - - - - 230.26 308.55 - - 230.26 308.55

Wealth Tax - - - - 2.43 2.33 - - 2.43 2.33

Provision for Taxes of 

Earlier year

- - - - (0.22) 10.00 - - (0.22) 10.00

Proit After Tax - - - - 5484.39 3994.27 - - 5484.39 3994.27

Other Information :

Segment Assets - - - - 92076.39 79137.35 - - 92076.39 79137.35

Segment Liabilities - - - - 55443.79 49672.83 - - 55443.79 49672.83

Capital Expenditure 

is as per Cash Flow 

Statement

1127.93 2668.81 1998.15 1813.29 221.49 136.83 - - 3347.57 4618.93

Depreciation 490.48 162.70 773.62 381.57 152.72 121.28 - - 1416.82 665.55

Non-Cash

Expenditure

- 1.59 - 0.38 - - - - - 1.97

B. Secondary Segment

The Company caters mainly to the need of the Indian Market. The Export Turnover during the year is less than 10 % of the total turnover; 

as such there is no reportable geographical segment.
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ii) Transactions during the year with related parties:- 

(In Lacs)

Sl

No.

Name of Related Parties Relationship Nature of Payment 2014-15 2013-14

1 Sh. Hari Chand Aggarwal Chairman Director’s Renumeration & 

Perquisites

76.00 76.00

Loan Taken 350.00 -

Interest Paid 18.67 -

Loan Repaid 350.00 -

2 Sh. Rajesh Aggarwal Managing Director Director’s Renumeration & 

Perquisites

  63.40 63.32

Loan Taken 598.00 -

Interest Paid 30.81 -

Loan Repaid 598.00 -

3 Sh. Sanjeev Bansal Whole-time Director Director’s Renumeration & 

Perquisites

                       -       2.23 

4 Smt. Nikunj Aggarwal Whole-time Director Director’s Renumeration & 

Perquisites

   12.82   11.82 

5 Sh. Vrijesh Kumar Gupta Director Sitting Fees      1.80     1.50 

6 Sh. Navneet Goel Director Sitting Fees       1.65     1.35 

7 Mr. Gopal Chandra Agarwal Director Sitting Fees                   1.95                 1.50

8 Mr. Navin Shah Director Sitting Fees       1.30        0.30

9 Mr. Anil Kumar Singh Director Sitting Fees       1.95     1.50 

10 ISEC Organics Ltd Associate Company Rent     35.76   33.71 

11 Paras Agro Industries Associate Firm Purchases     31.80 138.00

12 Evergreen Mineral Industries Associate Firm Purchases     82.66 261.54

13 Vinod Metal Industries Associate Firm Purchases     80.13  - 

33. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

In compliance to AS 18 issued by The Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, the Disclosure of transactions with Related Parties as 

deined in Accounting Standard are given herein below:

I) Related Parties

A. Key Management Personnel & their Relatives :

  1. Sh. Hari Chand Aggarwal 8. Sh. Vrijesh Kumar Gupta                        

  2. Sh. Rajesh Aggarwal 9. Sh. Gopal Chandra Agarwal 

  3. Ms. Nikunj Aggarwal 10. Sh. Navin Shah

  4. Sh. Navneet Goel 11. Sh. Anil Kumar Singh

  5. Sh. Sandeep Aggarwal 12. Ms. Sonia Aggarwal

  6. Sh. Pankaj Gupta 13. Ms. Anju Aggarwal

7. Sh. Sanjeev Aggarwal

B. Other related parties where common control exists and with whom the    company had transactions during the year:

  1. Paras Agro Industries Associate Firm

  2. ISEC Organics Ltd. Associate Company

  3. Evergreen Mineral Industries Associate Firm

  4. Valve Phneumaticals Associate Firm

  5. Vinod Metal Industries Associate Firm

  6. Oats & IIL India Laboratories Private Limited Joint Venture

(Except above, there is no other related persons / parties with whom transaction took place during the year as conirmed and certiied by 

the Management of the Company)
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ii) Transactions during the year with related parties:- 

(In Lacs)

Sl

No.

Name of Related Parties Relationship Nature of Payment 2014-15 2013-14

14 Valves & Pneumatics Associate Firm Purchases       4.21  - 

15 OAT & IIL India Laboratories Joint Venture R & D Expense                             1,27.48  NIL 

16 Sonia Aggarwal Relative of KMP Consultancy       6.75  N.A. 

17 Sanjeev Aggarwal Relative of KMP  Salary & other beneits 14.37  N.A. 

18 Anju Aggarwal Relative of KMP Salary & other beneits 7.20  N.A. 

19 Sandeep Aggarwal KMP(CFO) Salary & other beneits 22.27  N.A. 

20 Pankaj Gupta KMP

(Company Secretary)

Salary & other beneits 9.58  N.A. 

33. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (contd.)

iii) Balance outstanding with related parties:-

(In Lacs)

Sl

No.

Name of Related Parties Relationship Nature of  O/S   As at

March 31, 2015 

  As at

March 31, 2015 

1 Sh. Hari Chand Aggarwal Chairman Remuneration Payable 4.25 3.87

2 Sh. Rajesh Aggarwal Managing Director Remuneration Payable 3.55 3.48

3 Smt. Nikunj Aggarwal Whole-time Director Remuneration Payable 0.84 0.83

4 Paras Agro Industries Associate Firm Trade Payable 0.80 NIL

5 Evergreen Mineral Industries Associate Firm Trade Payable 1.34 NIL

6 ISEC Organics Ltd. Associate Company Rent Payable 6.81 3.24

7 Vinod Metal Industries Associate Firm Trade Payable 5.53 11.28

8 Valves Pneumatics Associate Firm Trade Payable 0.94 0.25

9 Oats & IIL India Laborartories 

Private Limited

Joint venture - N.A.*

10 Sh. Sandeep Aggarwal CFO Remuneration Payable 1.47 N.A.*

11 Sh. Pankaj Gupta Company Secretary Remuneration Payable 0.78 N.A.*

12 Sh. Sanjeev Aggarwal Relative Of KMP Remuneration Payable 1.05 N.A.*

13 Ms Sonia Aggarwal Relative Of KMP Consultancy Fees 0.52 N.A.*

14 Ms Anju Aggarwal Relative Of KMP Remuneration Payable 0.70 N.A.*

* Figures of KMP was not applicable in 2013-14 as per Company Act, 2013

34. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES

The detail of deferred tax liabilities for the year is given as under: 

 (In Lacs)

Particular   As at

March 31, 2015 

  As at

March 31, 2014 

Deferred Tax Assets                                 NIL NIL

Deferred Tax Liabilities (Related to Depreciation) 1556.92 1326.66

Deferred Tax Liabilities

At the end of the year                       1556.92 1326.66

For the year                                         230.26 308.55
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35. PAYMENT TO AUDITORS : (NET OF SERVICE TAX)

 (In Lacs)

Particular 2014-15 2013-14

(a) Auditors

Statutory Audit Fees                                                                        12.00 12.00

Tax Audit Fees                                                                        4.00 3.00

In Other Capacity

 Taxation & Other Matters                  6.00 3.00

(b) Cost Audit Fee 2.30 2.30

TOTAL 24.30 20.30

38. VALUE OF IMPORTS (ON CIF BASIS)

 (In Lacs)

Particular 2014-15 2013-14

Raw Materials 19978.52 15818.48

Machinery 177.00 17.46

37. COST OF IMPORTED MATERIALS CONSUMED

Particular 2014-15 2013-14

Amount (In Lacs) Percentage Amount (In Lacs) Percentage

A. Raw Material Consumed

Imported 21592.43 35.11   14704.28 30.27

Indigenous 39907.68 64.89 33878.82 69.73

Total 61500.11 100.00 48583.10 100.00

B. Packing Materials & Cosumable Stores Consumed

Imported - - - -

Indigenous 6692.48 100.00 6770.64 100.00

Total 6692.48 100.00 6770.64 100.00

C.  Raw Material,Packing Materials & 

Cosumable Stores Consumed

Imported 21592.43 31.66    14704.28 26.56

Indigenous 46600.16 68.34 40649.46 73.44

Total 68192.59 100.00 55353.74 100.00

36. REMITTANCE IN FOREIGN CURRENCY ON ACCOUNT OF DIVIDEND: NIL

39. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

As per Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, a CSR committee has been formed by the company.  The company’s policy covers current as 

well as propsed CSR activities to be undertaken by the company and examining their alignment with Schedule VII of the Act.

The company proposes to implement its CSR activities in various sectors which includes promoting Education, green initiatives, facilities for 

senior citizens, vocational & entrepreneurship skills, medical aid & healthcare, old age homes & women hostels, art and culture, destitute care 

and rehabilitation, rural development projects and others. 
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40. EXPENDITURE IN FOREIGN CURRENCY

 (In Lacs)

Particular 2014-15 2013-14

Tour & Travelling Expenses 16.64 6.44

Royalty 216.76 217.52

Sales Promotion - 1.93

Professional Charges - 2.87

Interest 328.86 429.78

41. INCOME IN FOREIGN CURRENCY (FOB)

 (In Lacs)

Particular 2014-15 2013-14

Export Sales 86.12 231.82

Dividend Income 5.19 0

42. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

 (In Lacs)

S. 

No.

Particular   As at

March 31, 2015 

  As at

March 31, 2014 

(a) Letter of Credits (FLC & ILC) 8825.99 13326.63

(b) Bank Guarantee  326.93 424.57

(c) Import Bills Accepted  with  Banks NIL 563.55

(d) Excise Matter with Appellate Authority, New Delhi 

(Period Covered – March, 2002  to October,2002)

NIL 75.67

(e) Excise Matter with  Appellate Authority, New Delhi 

(Period Covered – Sept.,2004  to  August,2007)

186.11 186.11

(f) Sales Tax Matters 473.55 464.04

(Except above no other contingent liabilities are outstanding as explained and Certiied by the Management of the Company)

With respect to contingent liabilities reported at (e) and (f) above, the management has taken an opinion from the legal advisors / professionals 

engaged by them and is very much hopeful that the appeals will be decided in the favour of the company and as such, no provision thereof 

has been made.

43. Estimated amount of Contract remaining to be executed on capital accounts (net of advances) & not provided for NIL (Previous year H950

Lacs).

44. In the opinion of the Board of Directors of the Company, the current assets, loans and advances have the value at least equal to the igures 

stated in the Balance Sheet on realization in the ordinary course of business and provision for all determinable/known liabilities have been 

made in the Accounts when reliable estimates can be made of the amount of obligation.

45. The Balances shown under the head sundry debtors and Sundry Creditors are subject to conirmation and reconciliations. However, the 

Company has initiated the process of obtaining conirmations from sundry debtors & creditors.

46. The Company has valued inventories as required under AS-2 issued by The Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. 

47. The total amount payable to Small Scale Industries (SSI) outstanding for more than 30 days as at March 31, 2015 is  H1176.35 Lacs 

(Previous Year - H1312.75 Lacs).
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51. DERIVATIVES INSTRUMENTS & UNHEDGED FOREIGN CURRENCY EXPOSURE

a) The nominal amount of derivative contracts entered into by the company and outstanding as on March 31, 2015 amounts to H2607.90

Lacs (Previous Year – H3074.96 Lacs).  The Category wise break-up is given below:-

 (In Lacs)

S. 

No.

Particular   As at

March 31, 2015 

  As at

March 31, 2014 

1 Interest Rate Swaps 10.94 11.55

2 Currency Swaps 2104.77 2321.90

3 Options 492.19 741.51

b) Foreign currency exposure that are not hedged by derivatives instruments as on March 31, 2015 amounts to H6722.36 Lacs (Previous Year 

H15060.70 Lacs).

c) Mark to Market Losses provided by the company in earlier year, reversed during the year amounts to H17.96 Lacs i.e. M to M as on March 

31, 2015 stands at H14.68 Lacs (Previous Year- H32.64 Lacs).

48. The Company has not received any conirmation from suppliers regarding their status of registration under the Micro, Small & Medium 

Enterprises Development Act, 2006 which came into effect from October 2, 2006 and hence disclosure required under the said act have 

not been given.

49. The  Previous Year Figures have been reworked , regrouped , rearranged, reclassiied  and / or re-casted   wherever  deemed necessary to 

make them comparable with those of the current year’s igures.

50. All the common expenses incurred during the year in respect of Formulation (Products) units at Chopanki, Samba, Udhampur and Dahej 

have been allocated at the year end in the proportion to sales (net) effected during the year. The Technical (Products) Units at Chopanki 

& Dahej are separate as well as independent units having no common activities if compared with above mentioned Formulation Units and 

as such, the expenses incurred by branches/ other units have not been allocated to the Technical unit except common expenses incurred 

by the Head ofice which are allocated in proportion to Sales (net) effected by all the units.

As per our separate report of even date annexed herewith

For MOHIT PAREKH & CO. For and on Behalf of the Board          

Chartered Accountants Hari Chand Aggarwal Rajesh Aggarwal  Nikunj Aggarwal

Firm Reg. No. 0002067N Chairman Managing Director Whole Time Director

DIN 00577015 DIN 00576872 DIN 06569091

Mohit A Parekh Sandeep Aggarwal Pankaj  Gupta

Proprietor Chief Financial Of�cer Company Secretary 

M.No.-  081069

Place : Delhi                                                           

Date: May 27, 2015
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